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OUR MISSION
PRL is committed to remaining a
leader in the oil refining business of
Pakistan by providing value added
products that are environmentally friendly, and by
protecting the interest of all stakeholders in a
competitive market through sustainable development
and quality human resources.

To be the Refinery of
first choice for all
stakeholders.
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Core Values



…employees; To respect the rights of its employees and provide them with good and safe conditions of work, good
competitive terms and conditions of service and to promote the development and best use of human talent and
equal opportunity employment, and to encourage the involvement of employees in the planning and direction of
its work, and in the application of these principles within the Company.

…business partners; To seek mutually beneficial relationships with contractors, suppliers and joint-venture partners
and to promote the application of these principles in so doing. The ability to promote these principles effectively
will be an important factor in the decision to enter into or remain in such relationships.

…society; To conduct business as a responsible corporate member of society, to observe the laws of Pakistan, to
express support for fundamental human rights in line with the legitimate role of business, to not indulge in antisocial
and unfair trade practices such as adulteration, hoarding and black marketing and to actively lead in contributing
to community development activities.
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Responsibility
Pakistan Refinery Limited is cognizant of its responsibility to……

…shareholders; To protect their investment and provide an attractive return.

…customers; To win and retain customers by developing and providing products which offer value in terms of
price, quality, safety and environmental impact, the sale of which is supported by the requisite technological,
environmental and commercial expertise.



Health, Safety and
Environment
Pakistan Refinery Limited has a systematic approach
to health, safety and environmental management in
order to achieve cont inuous  performance
improvement. To this end, the Company manages
these matters as any other critical business activity,
sets targets for improvement, and measures, appraises
and reports performance.
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Pakistan Refinery Limited is performance-driven with
273 employees committed to providing innovative
and efficient solutions to achieve its goals. The
Company serves diverse industries, providing quality
distilled petroleum products that help move country
commerce forward hence cost efficiency, operational
excellence and innovativeness are paramount
objectives. Pakistan Refinery Limited strives for
excellence through sincere leadership and dynamic
support staff along with using the right Management
System Processes.

Operational
Excellence

Pakistan Refinery Limited aspires to espouse key values
i.e. honesty, integrity and fairness in all aspects of its
business and expects the same in its relationships with
all those with whom it does business. The Company
recognizes that given the importance of the activities in
which it is engaged and its impact on national economies
and individuals, open communication, both internal and
external, is essential. Pakistan Refinery Limited supports
free enterprise and seeks to compete fairly and ethically
and within the framework of applicable competition laws.
The Company is committed to providing equal opportunity
and fair treatment to all individuals on the basis of merit
along with a healthy, harassment free work environment
for all employees.

Ethics and
Integrity
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PRL & United Nations GLOBAL COMPACT PRINCIPLES

Human Rights
Principle1: Bus inesse s shou ld su pp ort an d resp ect  the  p rotectio n of  internat ionally

p ro claimed hum an rights; and

Principle 2: Make sure that  they are n ot co mplicit in human rights  abuses .

Labor Standards
Principle 3: Bu sinesses  sho uld u pho ld the free do m of  associat io n and  th e ef fect ive

recog nit io n of the rig ht to  collect ive b argaining :

P rinciple 4: Th e elimination of  all form of f orce d and com pulsory lab or;

P rinciple 5: Th e effect ive abo lition o f child labo r; and

Principle 6: Th e elimination of  discrimination in respe ct of e mployment and occupation.

Environment
Principle 7: Bu sine sses  sh ould  su pp ort  a precau tio nary app roach  to  environ men tal

ch allenges :

P rinciple 8: Und ertake initiatives  to p ro mote g reate r en vironmental respo nsibility; and

Principle 9: E nc ourag e th e d evelo pm ent  an d dif fus ion  o f e nviron men tally friend ly
technolog ies .

Anti-Corruption
Principle 10: Bus in esses sho uld w ork against  all forms of corruptio n, in clud ing ex tort io n

and  brib ery.

Corporate Social
Responsibility
Pakistan Refinery Limited takes a constructive interest
in societal matters and it's Corporate Social Responsibility
Program supports the organization's overall strategy and
core values. The Company remains commit ted to
safeguarding the health and safety of its employees and
neighbours, protecting the environment and providing
sustainable benefits to the communities where it operates.
Pakistan Refinery Limited assesses the implications and
effects of its decisions and policies on society and
ensures that societal interest is not affected by Company
actions.



Company Secretary
Hafsa Shamsie

Auditor
A. F. Ferguson & Co.

Legal Advisor
Orr Dignam & Co.

Registrar & Share Registration Office
Ferguson Associates (Pvt.) Ltd.
P. O. Box 4716,
State Life Building 2-A, 4th Floor
I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi-74000.

Bankers
ABN AMRO Bank N.V.,  Askari Bank Limited, Bank Alfalah Limited,
Bank Al-Habib Limited, Citi Bank N.A., Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited,
Habib Bank Limited, MCB Bank Limited, National Bank Limited,
Soneri Bank Limited, Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited,
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited,
Union Bank Limited, United Bank Limited.

Registered Office
P. O. Box 4612 Korangi Creek Road, Karachi-74000.
Tel Off: (92-21) 5091771-79, 5091811-16
Fax: (92-21) 5060145, 5091780
http://www.prl.com.pk
info@prl.com.pk

Pakistan Refinery was incorporated in
Pakistan as a public limited company
in May 1960 and is quoted on the
Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges.
The Refinery is situated on the coastal
belt of Karachi, Pakistan. PRL is a hydro
skimming refinery designed to process
various imported and local crude oil
to meet the strategic and domestic
fuel requirements of the country. The
Refinery has a capacity of processing
47,000 barrels per day of crude oil
into a variety of distilled petroleum
products.
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Company Information
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Board of Directors
Mr. Farooq Rahmatullah

Mr. Rahmatullah is a law graduate from University of Peshawar. He joined Burmah Shell Oil and Distribution Company in
1968 and worked in different capacities i.e. Chemicals, Human Resources, Marketing, Supply, Distribution, Retail, etc.
Transferred to Shell International London in 1994, Mr. Farooq was appointed as a Manager in the Business Strategy
Division and was involved in various portfolios covering over 140 countries. On his return in 1998, Mr. Farooq was
appointed as Head of Operations of Shell Pakistan and was looking after Middle East and South Asia (MESA). In 2001
Mr. Farooq was appointed as Chairman of Shell Companies in Pakistan and Managing Director of Shell Pakistan Limited.
He has been a founding member of PAPCO (Pak Arab Pipeline Company). He retired from Shell on 30th June, 2006.

Mr. Farooq has been Chairman of Pakistan Refinery Limited (PRL) since June, 2005. In addition to this, he is currently
the Director General of Civil Aviation Authority of Pakistan. He is also the Chairman of LEADS Pakistan, founding member
of Pakistan Human Development Fund, Director on the Board of Society for Sustainable Development, member of
Resource Development Committee of Aga Khan University Hospital, member of National Commission of Government
Reforms, member of Pakistan Stone Development Company, and member of Board of Trustees of Legends Trust formed
by the Government of Sindh.
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Mr. Jalees A. Siddiqi

Mr. Siddiqi has vast multifunctional experience. Mr. Siddiqi is a broad based professional and as an Executive Director,
Human Resource and Services was looking after the vital area of human resources along with services function. He
assumed his responsibilities as Managing Director & CEO, Pakistan State Oil, on April 20, 2005. Mr. Siddiqi also has
international working experience. Besides Pakistan he has
worked in United States, Canada and also has been a member
of various task forces in the Asia-Pacific region. He has
attended several senior management internal programs on
leadership, human resource and management of change,
including those of the London Business School, University
of Michigan, Darden Business School, and University of
Virginia, USA.

Mr. Siddiqi is also on the board of Asia Petroleum Limited,
Pak Arab Pipe line Company Limited, Pak Grease
Manufacturing Company Limited, Petroleum Institute of
Pakistan as well as Member, Business Role Focus Area Core
Team of the world Business Council of Sustainable
Development, Oil Companies Advisory Committee, Pakistan
Society of Human Resource Management, Federation of
Pakistan Chambers of Commerce & Industry Quality Awards
Committee, Pakistan Advertisers Society and Board of
Governors, Lahore University of Management Sciences. He
is also on the Advisory Board for the Petroleum Engineering
wing of the NED University, Karachi.



Mr. Zaiviji Ismail Bin Abdullah

Mr. Ismail, an MBA from Cranfield UK, joined Shell Malaysia
Trading in 1990 as Project Manager, Marketing Systems. He
served in various positions in Marketing, Operations and Retail
with Shell Malaysia Trading. He has also served as GM Retail
Sales and Operations in Shell Oman from 1999 to 2002. He
moved to Shell Pakistan Limited in 2003 as GM Retail Sales
and Operations and is currently serving as Chairman of Shell
Companies in Pakistan and Managing Director of Shell Pakistan
Limited since September 2006.

Mr. Ijaz Ali Khan

Mr. Khan  is an Engineer by qualification and has 37
years experience with International Oil Companies. He
initially joined Burmah Shell Oil Company, Pakistan in
1967 but left after a few years to work for Aramco, Saudi
Arabia. During his tenure in Aramco for over two decades,
he worked in various professional and managerial
capacities in Engineering, Planning and Operations. He
returned in 1997 to re-join Shell in Pakistan. He is currently
Director Operations in Shell Pakistan and is also a Director
on the Board of Pak Arab Pipeline Company Limited.
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Mr. Asif S. Sindhu

Mr. Sindhu is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants, with around 20 years of diversified financial
experience. Mr. Sindhu was associated with A. F. Ferguson
& Co. Chartered Accountants (Price Waterhouse Coopers)
Karachi, from 1986 to 1991 as an Audit supervisor. He
then joined ANZ Grindlays Bank in 1992 where he held
various senior positions in Pakistan, Dubai and Melbourne,
Australia. From 1997 to 2001 he held the position of
CFO with ANZ Grindlays Bank (Now Standard Chartered
Bank). Mr. Sindhu joined Shell Pakistan Limited in 2001
as Planning Manager and later he was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer for the $480 million SPL joint venture,
Pak Arab Pipeline Company Limited. He returned to SPL
as Country Controller in 2005 and is currently working
as Finance Director (CFO). He is responsible for the
overall Finance, Accounting, Treasury and Governance
& Control Activities of the Company and also has financial
oversight responsibility for the other Shell businesses in
Pakistan. Mr. Sindhu is also a Director on the
Board of Pak Arab Pipeline Company Limited.

Mr. Hussain Dawood

Mr. Dawood is an MBA from the Kellogg School of Management,
Northwestern University, USA, and a graduate in Metallurgy
from Sheffield University, UK. He heads a group of diversified
businesses with interests in Fertilizers, Chemicals, Energy,
Chemical Terminal, Gas Distribution & Transmission, Foods,
Industrial Automation, IT Solutions & Hardware, Textiles,
Brokerage and Insurance. He is Chairman of Engro Chemical
Pakistan Ltd., Dawood Hercules Chemicals Ltd., Central
Insurance Company Ltd. and Dawood Lawrencepur Ltd. He
is also a Director on the Board of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines
Ltd. His Social Responsibilities include Chairmanship of the
Board of Directors of Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund, which
is one of the largest World Bank supported funds of its kind.
He also serves as a Director of Pakistan Business Council,
Beaconhouse National University and Institute of Strategic
Studies. He is the Honorary Consul of Italy, in Lahore, and is
a former Director of State Bank of Pakistan and Advisor to
the Ministry of Commerce. He is the first Pakistani to become
a member of the World Economic Forum. He has accompanied
the President and the Prime Minister on foreign delegations.
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Mr. Ardeshir Cowasjee

Mr. Cowasjee has been on the Board of Directors since
1979. Besides being on the Board of Pakistan Refinery
Limited, Mr. Cowasjee is a landlord, ship-owner, merchant,
senior partner of the Cowasjee Family firms, Chairman
of Crescent Star Insurance Co. Ltd., and on the Board of
Directors for Shahtaj Sugar Mills Ltd.



Mr. G. A. Sabri

Mr. Sabri is a Chemical Engineer by profession and has
served in the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources,
Government of Pakistan in various capacities for almost
32 years including 27 years in the down stream sector.
He has attended a number of international meetings and
overseas courses.  He has been on the Board of Directors
of PERAC, Pakistan State Oil Co. Ltd., National Refinery
Limited, PARCO, Attock Refinery Limited, Pak Iran Refinery
Limited, Crescent Petroleum Limited, Marine Pollution
Control Board, Pirkoh Gas Co. Ltd., Oil & Gas Development
Co. Ltd, Pakistan Petroleum Limited, Mari Gas Co. Ltd,
Hydrocarbon Development Institute of Pakistan, Alternate
Energy Development Board. He has also been a member
of various other Governmental Committees. Currently
he is also on the Boards of PARCO and Total PARCO. In
the academic sector he is a member of the Board of
Studies in Chemical Engineering and Technology
University of Punjab Lahore. He actively works in a couple
of philanthropist organizations with Pakistan Kidney
Institute, Islamabad in health sector and Tehzibul Akhlaq
Trust, Lahore in the education sector.

Mr. Shahid Anwar Khan

Mr. Khan is an engineer by profession and has done
his MBA (Major in Finance) from U.S.A. in 1981. He is
also a Diplomat Associate of Institute of Bankers, in
Pakistan. He joined National Bank of Pakistan in 1983
as Assistant Vice President. He has worked in all
disciplines of the bank and has vast experience of
Credit/Project Financing. He has attended a number
of local and international seminars/trainings sponsored
by World Bank and Asian Development Bank. He is also
an alumni of International Centre of Leadership in
Finance (lCLIF) Malaysia. He is presently working as a
SEVP/ Group Head, Credit Management Group, National
Bank of Pakistan, Head Office Karachi. Besides serving
on various Management Credit Committees of the
Bank, he also represents NBP as Director in various
companies.

Mr. Nadeem Jafarey

Mr. Jafarey is the Country Representative of Chevron
Pakistan Ltd formerly known as Caltex Oil Pakistan Ltd.
In addition, he is Director & General Manager Retail /
C&I of the company. He is also member of the Africa-
Pakistan Marketing Leadership Team which comprises
South Africa, East & West Africa, Middle East and Pakistan.
He has 23 years of diversified work experience in the
petroleum sector both in refining and marketing.

Mr. Jafarey holds a Masters degree in  Business
Administration and a Bachelors degree in Mechanical
Engineering. He is also Director on the Boards of Pak
Arab Pipeline Company Ltd and Petroleum Institute of
Pakistan. He is a member of the Pakistan Engineering
Council and Institute of Engineers in Karachi. He has also
served as a Chairman of the Oil Companies Advisory
Committee in 2004 and on the executive committees
of the American Business Council of Pakistan and the
Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce & Industry
(OICCI).
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Board Committees

Human Resources Committee

The HR Committee comprises of three members, including the chairman, from the non-executive Directors of the Board.
During the period the Committee held four meetings on a required/directed basis. The HR Committee has been delegated
the role of assisting the Board of Directors in ensuring that the Company is able to attract and retain a professional,
motivated and competent workforce. To this end, the Committee evaluates and recommends salary structures, variable
pay, key-position recruitments, succession plans etc. to the Board of Directors for their review and approval.

Strategic Project Committee

The Strategic Project Committee comprises two members, including the chairman, from the non-executive Directors of
the Board. The Committee held two meetings during the year on a required/directed basis. The Strategic Project
Committee is responsible for evaluating potential project feasibilities, ranging from up gradation/enhancement to
diversification projects, and recommending projects that ensure attractive return and growth prospects to the Board
of Directors for their review and approval.

Name of Directors Total No. of
Audit Committee Meeting

Meetings Attended

Mr. Zaiviji Ismail 4 3

Mr. Jalees A. Siddiqui 4 3

Mr. Ijaz Ali Khan* 1 1

Mr. Asif S. Sindhu 3 3

* Held during the period concerned director was on the 
committee
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, including the Chairman, from the non-executive Directors of the Board
all of whom have sufficient financial management expertise. The Chief Internal Auditor is the Secretary of the Committee.
The Committee held four meetings during the year and held separate meetings with the Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Internal Auditor and External Auditors as required under the Code of Corporate Governance. The Committee assists the
Board of Directors in ensuring adequate safeguard of Company assets, effectiveness and adequacy of the Company's
system of internal control and compliance with operational, financial and risk management policies of the Company. The
Committee supervises the Company's financial reporting process including review of interim and annual accounts prior
to Board of Directors' approval and subsequent publication with focus on areas of material impact and compliance with
applicable accounting standards, listing regulations and best practices as per the Code of Corporate Governance. The
Committee is responsible for review of External Auditors' communications including management letters and discussion
on major findings from interim and final audits and any matter that the External Auditors may wish to highlight. Additionally,
the Committee has the permit to review and investigate any matter or issue as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for the following:

Recommending to the Board of Directors the appointment of external auditors by the shareholders. The Committee shall
consider any question of resignation/removal, audit fee and provision of other services by external auditor.

Determining appropriate measure to safeguard the Company's assets.

Review of preliminary announcements of results prior to publication.

Review of interim and annual accounts prior to the Board of Directors approval, focusing on:

Major judgmental areas;

Significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

Going Concern assumption;

Changes in accounting policies and practices;

Compliance with applicable accounting standards, listing regulations, and other regulatory requirements.

Discussion on audit issues with external auditors, review of management letter and management response there-against
and ensuring coordination between internal and external auditors.

Review of scope and extent of internal audit, consideration of major findings and ensuring that the Internal Audit function
has adequate resources and is appropriately placed within the Company.

Consideration of major findings of internal investigations and management response thereto. Ascertaining the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal control system.

Review of Company's statement of internal control prior to its endorsement by the Board of Directors.

Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter specified by the Board of
Directors, in consultation with the Chief Executive and to consider remittance of any matter to the external auditors or
to any other body.

Monitoring compliance with statutory requirements and Code of Corporate Governance and identification of significant
violations thereof.

Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.



Management Committees
The Management Team is led by the Managing Director of the
Company and is responsible for ensuring that the objectives and
strategies of the Board are implemented whilst maintaining a
culture of openness, integrity, accountability and commitment
to the Company's principles.
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1. Naman Shah
2. Hafsa Shamsie
3. Dr. Junaid Farouqui

4. Aftab Husain
5. Zafar Haleem
6. Khawaja Nauman

7. Akram Peracha



The Purchase Committee is responsible for ensuring that all procurement activities are conducted in a
transparent and objective manner and the same is duly monitored by the senior management representatives
on the Committee as well as the internal audit function. This helps build a climate of meritocracy and ethical
conduct. The Recruitment and Selection Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Company adds
only top-class talent to its existing talent pool in order to sustain the already-high standards of professionalism
and competence in the Company. The committee consists of managers with diversified experience in order
to ensure recruitment of well-rounded individuals. The Policies & Procedures Review Advisory Committee
is responsible for ensuring that Company policies are as per market practices and in line with regulatory
requirements and that well laid-out and documented procedures exist for these policies. The Committee is
responsible for the regular review of these policies and procedures to ensure that they remain relevant and
appropriate over time. The Ethics Committee is responsible for ensuring that Company operations are
conducted in conformity with organizational objectives and policies with high standards of values and ethical
conduct. The Company has defined policies regarding harassment, acceptance of gif ts; conflict of interest
etc. and no deviations are tolerated.
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Chairman’s Review

On behalf of the Board of
Directors, I am pleased to
welcome you all to the 47th
Annual General Meeting of
your Company to present the
annual review of its operations
and audited financial results
for the year ended June 30,
2007.
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The year under review saw a fluctuating trend in international
petroleum prices wherein the first half of the year depicted
a consis tent  downward movement for prices  and
correspondingly refining margins. This trend in the first
half of the year was triggered by various factors including
low demand of heating oil in the US due to mild weather,
high product inventories and higher crude throughputs
thus resulting in a drag on refining margins. However, the
second half of the year saw a trend reversal where
international petroleum prices regained their upward
momentum and remained consistently high thereby
favorably impacting refining margins. This upsurge was
mainly on account of increased demand for adequate
supply of gasoline in USA ahead of the peak driving season,
growing geo-political tension in the Middle East, buoyant
Naphtha demand, planned refinery shut-downs and
continuing supply restraint by OPEC. Arab Light crude
which constitutes bulk of your refinery's crude recipe,
reached an all time high of $69.9 per barrel in August 2006
and then to a year low of $52.1 per barrel in January 2007.
On average, the price of Arabian Light crude increased
to $61.4 per barrel depict ing an increase of 5% in
comparison with last year.

The economy of our country remained under pressure
during the year due to the threat of increasing inflation
and volatile movement in international petroleum product prices. Petroleum products off-take in the country increased
to 16.76 million metric tons as compared to 14.48 million metric tons last year, registering an increase of 15.7%.  This
was mainly on the back of increased demand for furnace oil, which grew by 47.3%, from the power sector due to
growth in electricity demand and frequent interruptions in gas supplies. This in turn led to an increase in import of
furnace oil during the year. Despite sustained GDP growth of 7.0% on average for the past four years, its impact could
not be translated into robust demand for other petroleum products. Motor Spirit sales volume remained depressed,
registering a decline of 26.9% from the previous period due to a shift in consumer preference towards cheaper CNG
alternative.

During the year, your refinery operated at a capacity of 5871 metric tons per day versus 5964 metric tons per day
last year and successfully completed the 28 days turn-around which was carried out during August 2006 after 52
months of continuous operations of the refinery. The suspension of refinery operations during August impacted sales
revenue which decreased by 5.8% as compared to last year. Your refinery successfully optimized its product slate to
suit market conditions of product demand. Consequently, your refinery was able to increase its Naphtha exports by
20% in comparison to last year as local demand of Motor Gasoline registered marked decrease. Sales of jet fuel to
defense forces, now completely on JP-8 product specification also saw a healthy rise in sales to 90,576 metric tons
versus 72,898 metric tons, an increase of 24.3% as compared to last year.

The refinery also had the honor to receive the "Special Merit Exporter Award for 2006" for its exports and foreign
exchange earnings of Rs. 8.4 billion by the Federation of Pakistan Chamber of Commerce & Industry (FPCCI).
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I am pleased to inform you that despite challenges posed by thin refining margins and scheduled turnaround in the first
half of the year, your Company managed to earn robust after tax profit of Rs 250.8 million during the current year which
translates into an earnings per share of Rs 8.36. The reserves of the Company continue to be healthy at Rs 4.5 billion
as at June 30, 2007.

Your Company has been passionately involved in fulfilling its social responsibilities through its Corporate Social
Responsibilities (CSR) program. The CSR program is designed with an aim to serve humanity and help alleviate the social
and economic conditions of the needy, especially in areas of health and education. Since 2005, PRL has been voluntarily
adopting the charter of United Nation's Global Compact Principles. During this year, your refinery made a focused effort
towards assisting local charity-run hospitals to undertake much needed renovations and procuring updated equipment.
In the area of education, a considerable sum was spent to renovate two government run primary schools where major
structural renovations were carried out along with providing basic educational amenities like uniforms and stationary.
Additionally, funds were handed over to various responsible institutions and non-governmental organizations (NGO's)
who work on humanitarian grounds and provide free services like eye check up and surgery, AIDS awareness
programs etc.

Your Company has once again successfully complied with all HSEQ parameters. Both internal and external surveillance
audit by PRL and by the Bureau Veritas was carried out successfully for ISO-9001:2000, ISO-14001:2004 and OHSAS-
18001:1999. The Total Recordable Case Frequency (TRCf) for the year is now reduced to 1.22 as compared to 1.5 last
year. Your refinery also ensured that all parameters of effluent and emissions remain within the National Environmental
Quality Standards (NEQS) and results are being voluntarily submitted to Pakistan & Sindh EPA. Your refinery has scored
a hat-trick by receiving “ACCA-WWF Best Environment Reporting Award” for the third consecutive year for its responsible
HSEQ reporting. Other accolades in HSEQ include, "Annual Environment Excellence Award 2006" organized by National
Forum for Environment and Health, "Occupational Health and Safety Award" for best practices from Employers Federation
of Pakistan and "Excellence in Environment Award" from HELP.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank the outgoing directors, Mr. Quentin D’Silva, Mr. S. Ali Raza and Mr. Sabar
Hussain for their valuable contribution as guardian of all stakeholders of the Company and welcome on board Mr. Asif
S. Sindhu, Mr. Shahid Anwar Khan and Mr. G. A. Sabri.

It has been a landmark year for the refinery as your Board has finalized the investment plan and I am pleased to inform
you that your Company will be making a total investment of USD 320 million for up gradation of the refinery operations.
This up gradation plan will help the refinery in meeting future product specification requirements and will also sustain
future profitable operations of the refinery. This heralds a new era in the history of the refinery and makes way for your
refinery to continue to be a strategic player in the economic scenario of the country.

The results of the year could not have been achieved without the devotion, hard work and commitment of all employees
of the Company. On behalf of the Board, I would like to acknowledge and appreciate the employees' unyielding contributions
for the Company.

Farooq Rahmatullah
Karachi: August 27, 2007 Chairman



Directors’ Report

The Directors of your Company are pleased
to present their Annual Report together with
Audited Accounts for the year ended June
30, 2007.
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Financial Results

2007   2006
(Rupees in '000)

Profit for the year after taxation 250,814 1,344,942

Unappropriated profit as at July 01 69,698 69,698

Appropriations:

Final stock dividend @ 20% (2005: cash dividend 25%) (50,000) (50,000)

Interim dividend @ Nil (2006: stock dividend 25%) - (50,000)

Transfer to Special Reserve (150,814) (1,244,942)

Unappropriated profit carried forward 119,698 69,698

Earnings per share Rs. 8.36 Rs. 44.83

Dividend

The Directors are pleased to recommend a final cash dividend of Rs 100 million i.e. 33.33%, which will be paid to the
shareholders on the Company's register on September 18, 2007.



Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The Financial Statements have been prepared by the Management and represent fairly its state of affairs, the results
of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

The Company has maintained proper books of accounts as required under the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

The Company has followed consistent and appropriate accounting policies in the preparation of the financial
statements. Changes, wherever made, have been adequately disclosed. Accounting estimates are on the basis of
prudent and reasonable judgment.

International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of the financial
statements and deviation, if any, has been adequately disclosed.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored regularly.

The fundamentals of the Company are strong and it has the ability to continue as a going concern free from
uncertainties.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to high standards of corporate governance. There is no material departure from the best
practice of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations. The Company has been and shall remain committed
to the conduct of its business in line with the Code of Corporate Governance and the listing regulations of the Stock
Exchanges, which specify the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and management.

Key Operation and Financial Data

A Statement summarizing key operating and financial data for the last six years given on  page 30

Contribution to the National Exchequer

During the current year, Pakistan Refinery contributed an
amount of Rs 286 million to the National Exchequer in the
form of Direct Taxes. In addition, through the exports of
Naphtha product, your Company brought valuable Foreign
Exchange of approximately USD 140 million into the economy,
thereby reducing burden on the country's balance of
payments.

Value of Investment in Post - Employment Benefit Funds

The value of investments of provident, gratuity and pension funds
on the basis of un- audited accounts as at June 30, 2007 are as
follows:

(Rupees in '000)

2007

Provident fund 318,856

Gratuity fund management 55,871

Gratuity fund non-management 31,325

Pension fund management 421,790

Pension fund non-management 12,113
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Refinery Management
and Operations

Turn Around 2006

This year witnessed a major milestone for your refinery as turnaround activity was carried out after 52 months of
continuous operations, the longest period so far in the history of the refinery. The refinery was shut down for a total of
28 days to carry out major overhauling and maintenance work.

Planned shutdown of a refinery is a very complex and methodical process which requires meticulous execution as per
documented plans. Various pre-shutdown activities are also required to be carried out many months prior to the shut-
down itself to ensure smooth coordination between various business functions like Engineering, Operations, Procurement
& Material Management and Inspection.

Throughout the turn-around period, a very spirited approach was taken by all concerned staff i.e. engineers, technician
and contractors in order to successfully complete this mega project. Excellent planning, hard work and commitment
on part of the refinery staff for carrying out all planned and unforeseen activities led to the successful completion of
the activity without any incident or accident.

Advance Process Controls - The first implementation in Pakistan

Your refinery has yet again displayed technological leadership and innovativeness by successfully implementing a first
of its kind cutting-edge technology in the refining sector i.e. Advance Process Control system. Historically, your refinery
has been relying on the conventional pneumatic instruments which inherently cause larger variations in process and
hence compliance with product specifications has always remained a challenge.

In 2002 your refinery kicked off a project to digitize process area instrumentation. Within two years the Crude Unit
instrumentation was digitally automated. Consequently, the project to implement Advance Process Control (APC) system
commenced and after rigorous quality control testing in late 2006, your refinery commissioned the first deployment of
APC in Pakistan.

APC is a model predictive controller with builtin linear programming (LP) optimizer. APC optimizes Key Crude unit
parameters keeping in perspective their control constraints and economic benefits. It also maximizes Gas oil and Kerosene
yield from lower priced furnace oil thus minimizing fuel gas consumption in furnaces, and maintains crude unit process
within operating and safety constraints. The system ensures that there are minimum product giveaways by maintaining
product quality. It allows to operate optimum controlling and economically most feasible operating point while remaining
within safe operating limits.
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Construction of Crude Tank

Given the existing storage capacity position at Korangi
and Keamari locations and given the fact that two crude
tanks are annually pulled out under the standard repair
and maintenance cycle there was a shortage of 20,000
metric tons for crude storage. The construction of a new
tank kicked off in 2006 and is now nearing completion.
The commissioning of this tank will help fulfill all future
crude storage requirements. Further, construction of the
new tank will also facilitate storage of fuel oil during lean
periods resulting in storage rental savings. The tank has
a floating roof, 160 feet diameter and a height of
48 feet.
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Human Resource

Your refinery considers Human Resource function to be a strategic business function as in today's global marketplace,
the competitive advantage lies not just in product differentiation or cost leadership but in also being able to tap into
the Company's special skills and core competencies of its staff. In other words, competitive advantage lies in management's
ability to consolidate corporate-wide technologies and operational skills into competencies that empower individual
businesses to adapt quickly to changing opportunities. Your refinery prides itself on its ability to tap into the available
skill pool, recruit the best and train the human capital of the Company in order to develop a workforce which has
specialized skills and competencies.

On the operational side, our HR department provides all the necessary support ranging from manpower planning to
recruitment, from performance appraisal to training needs assessment, from compensation survey to salary and benefits
adjustment and from training to training evaluations and feedback. On the developmental side in order to ensure human
capital retention, HR plays its role through formal succession planning for the key organizational positions and facilitates
employees in planning and managing their career paths.

On the technological front, one of the recent and commendable achievements has been the implementation of SAP
Human Capital Module (HCM), a project that was completed well ahead of planned timelines. This module will greatly
help in payroll, time, personnel and organizational management.
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Information Technology

During the course of the year, a number of initiatives were taken by Information Technology department to ensure that
all information services requirements are fulfilled. Following improvements have been successfully incorporated during
the year:

 SAP services upgrade to ECC 6.0 version. This seamless upgrade was a complete success as the production server
was kept online for all users during working hours.

 PRL network upgrade. To date approximately 50% of the entire network has been successfully modified to Gigabit
platform. Gigabit platform allows for much quicker access to data and network connectivity. The remaining 10/100
mbps network is estimated to be phased out during the coming year.

 Disaster recovery procedures and new storage servers to facilitate data replication have been put in place. Each
year a disaster recovery drill is carried out and various test scenarios are exercised to ensure integrity and availability
of primary data.

 Active Directory Domain up gradation along with Domain Name Server (DNS) and Distributed File Systems (DFS)
have now been migrated to new storage servers.



The Project's primary objective is to ensure compliance with Government of Pakistan's requirement of Euro-II diesel
specification i.e. 500 parts per million (ppm) sulfur. Additionally, the Project will also help pave the way for sustained
profitability by altering the production slate towards increased production of higher margin products and thereby
justifying the investment. The entire future product slate would be marketable and mainly for local consumption.

During the year, the project governance structure has been put in place and the project team has been formed.
Specific initiatives include;

 Installation, including all ancillary equipment, of diesel hydro-treating facility to treat the total diesel produced
by the refinery for meeting (Euro-II) grade i.e. 500 parts per million sulfur.

 Installation, including all ancillary equipment, of Thermal Gas Oil Unit (TGU) facility to convert an appreciable
amount of fuel oil into diesel.

Presently, preliminary work is ongoing which will be the basis for the Front End Engineering Design (FEED) stage
which is expected to last approximately a year.
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Future Expansion Project

During the year, the Board
of your Company finalized
the investment plan whereby
a total investment of USD
320 million will be made for
up gradation of refinery
operations.
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Crisis Management & Mock Drill Practices

Your refinery has an established Crisis Management
Plan in place to make certain that the defined
responsibilities of its employees are regularly
exercised in case of any emergency or crisis
situation. For this purpose, mock drills are conducted
bi-annually to test the effectiveness of plans and to
create awareness amongst the employees who will
be responsible for playing pivotal roles during a
crisis.

Due to the nature of refinery products the major
focus of the mock drill is fire fighting. The fire section
of your refinery comprises of trained professionals
and further supported by nominated individuals
from various business functions. We have a Mutual
Aid Emergency Response Plan (MAERP) in place
which allows your refinery to pull in additional
support from other local refineries as well as OMC's.
Lessons learnt through each mock drill help bring
in continual improvements in the system.

PRL encourages its
contractors working
on its behalf or on its
premises to also
apply health, safety,
environment and
quality standards.

Soil and Ground Water Monitoring

Your refinery, over the years, has taken concrete initiatives to reduce soil and ground water contamination and stricter
controls have now been placed on activities that affect our environment. For this purpose, yearly soil & ground water
monitoring is carried out. The objective is to pull in contamination levels of soil and ground water and at the same time
develop base line data for analysis. The sampling points were identified in 2001 with the assistance of Environmental
Technology Program for Industry (ETPI), a joint project of FPCCI & Government of Netherlands. For 2006 the monitored
results of soil and ground water samples remain within the defined permissible limit of NEQS (National Environmental
Quality Standards).
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PRL conducts monthly testing of all its emission sources such as Stacks, Boilers & Generators.
Graphical representation of the emission level of different greenhouse gases as measured
against NEQS limits are given above for the furnace stack.
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Air Quality Test

Your refinery carries out ambient air quality sampling on an annual basis of Oxides of Sulfur, Carbon Monoxide etc. at
various locations of the refinery in order to check the pollutant level in the environment. The objective is to monitor
pollutant level in our refinery so as to take concrete steps to alleviate the hazardous air contents. The annual air quality
measurement results during 2006 in your refinery have remained within the defined permissible limit of NEQS (National
Environmental Quality Standards).
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Trading in Company Shares

Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children have not traded in the shares of the
Company during the year under consideration.

Pattern of Shareholding

The statement of Pattern of Shareholding as at June 30, 2007 is given on page 71 of the Annual Report.

External Auditors

The Auditors Messrs A.F.Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants retire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

Acknowledgement

We would like to take this opportunity to thank our employees, customers and strategic partners for their support and
commitment towards helping us achieve new heights of success and commendable results. The Board also places on
record its gratitude to its esteemed shareholders, Government of Pakistan and regulatory bodies for their continued
support.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors

Farooq Rahmatullah
Karachi: August 27, 2007 Chairman

Board Meetings held During the Year

The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable services rendered by the outgoing directors Mr. Quentin
D'Silva, Mr. S. Ali Raza and Mr. Sabar Hussain. The Board also welcomes aboard Mr. Asif S. Sindhu, Mr. Shahid Anwar Khan
and Mr. G.A. Sabri.

During the year, five Board of Directors meetings were held and the attendance of each director is given below:

Name of Director No. of Board Meetings* No. of Meetings Attended

Mr. Farooq Rahmatullah          5              5
Mr. Ardeshir Cowasjee          5              4

Mr. Asif S. Sindhu          5              3

Mr. G. A. Sabri          1               -
Mr. Hussain Dawood          5              3

Mr. Ijaz Ali Khan          5              5

Mr. Jalees A. Siddiqi          5              4
Mr. Nadeem N. Jafarey          5              5

Mr. Sabar Hussain          4*               -

Mr. S. Ali Raza          4*               -
Mr. Shahid Anwar Khan          1               -

Mr. Zaiviji Ismail bin Abdullah          5              5

Mr. Zafar Haleem          5              5

*Held during the period concerned Directors were on Board.
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Six Years at a Glance
Profit and Loss Account

Net Turnover Rs/mn  57,404.1  60,963.2  44,442.1  28,286.2  28,072.3  20,969.0

Gross profit Rs/mn  776.0  2,401.4  2,936.8  1,370.0  1,397.9  250.1

Operating profit Rs/mn  579.0  2,084.8  2,626.0  1,149.2  1,278.6  152.6

Profit before Tax Rs/mn  504.3  2,063.4  2,605.3  1,130.9  1,235.0  158.5

Profit after Tax Rs/mn  250.8  1,344.9  1,724.9  733.5  824.3  60.6

Dividend Rs/mn  100.0  100.0  100.0  100.0  100.0  125.0

Balance Sheet

Share Capital Rs/mn  300.0  250.0  200.0 200.0 200.0 200.0

Reserves Rs/mn  4,505.1  4,301.5  3,063.8  1,410.1 726.5 2.2

Property, Plant and
Equipment - Net Rs/mn  952.1  816.7  709.8 652.0 601.4  598.9

Net current assets/liabilities Rs/mn  3,711.0  3,639.6  2,495.7  929.9  284.3  (204.0)

Investor Information

Gross profit ratio %  1.4  3.9  6.6  4.8  5.0  1.2

Earnings per share Rs  8.4  44.8  69.0  36.7  41.2  3.0

Inventory turnover ratio Days  29.0  18.4  19.8  28.0  23.7  30.0

Debtor turnover ratio Days  26.9  22.7  25.8  26.0  19.7  26.5

Total assets turnover ratio Times  3.9  5.1  5.8  4.6  5.8  4.6

Fixed assets turnover ratio Times  71.2  113.0  80.4  53.3  50.0  39.2

Break-up value per share Rs  160.2  182.1  163.2  80.5  46.3  10.1

Market value per share at
 the end of the year Rs 222.0  213.9  207.9  150.0  181.7  35.9

Price earning ratio X  26.5  4.8  3.0  4.1  4.4  11.8

Dividend per share Rs  3.3  5.0  5.0  5.0  5.0  6.3

Dividend yield ratio %  1.5  2.3  2.4  3.3  2.8  17.4

Dividend pay out % 39.6  11.2  7.2  13.6  12.1  206.3

Return on capital employed %  5.2  29.5  52.8  45.6  89.0  30.0

Debt : Equity Ratio - - - - - -

Current ratio 1.4:1  1.5:1  1.6:1  1.2:1  1.1:1  1:1

Interest coverage ratio Times  7.7  58.7  100.6  87.5  23.2  2.4

Statement of Value Added and
how distributed

Employees as remuneration  328.1  260.1  224.4  206.6  187.6  181.4

Government as taxes  288.4  726.6  869.6  381.8  422.1  97.9

Shareholders as dividends  100.0  100.0  100.0  100.0  100.0  125.0

Retained within the business 150.8  1,244.9  1,624.9  633.5  724.3  -

2007 2006  2005  2004 2003 2002
Restated
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Notice of Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the Forty Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on September 25,
2007 at 10:00 AM at Marriot Hotel, Karachi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm minutes of the Forty Sixth Annual General Meeting held on Thursday September 21, 2006.

2. To review and approve the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2007 together with the
Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon.

3. To approve final dividend recommended by the Board of Directors.

4. To appoint Auditors for the next accounting period i.e. year ended June 30, 2008 and to fix their remuneration.

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from September 19, 2007 to September 25, 2007 (both
days inclusive) when no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration.

By Order of the Board

Hafsa Shamsie
Company Secretary

Karachi:  September 03, 2007

Notes

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint any other person as his/her proxy to attend
and vote instead of him/her. Proxies must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the time of holding the meeting.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the undermentioned guidelines as laid down by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

A. For Attending the Meeting:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group
account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations shall authenticate his/her identity by
showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending
the meeting.

(ii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group
account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the
above requirement.

(ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned
on the form.

(iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy
form.

(iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

(v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be
submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

2. The minutes of Forty Sixth Annual General Meeting held on September 21, 2006 are available at the Registered
Office of the Company.
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Statement of Compliance with the
Code of Corporate Governance
This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained in Regulation No. 37
of listing regulations of the Karachi Stock Exchange and Chapter Xlll of the Lahore Stock Exchange for the purpose of
establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best
practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing
minority interests on its Board of Directors.  At present the Board includes ten non-executive directors out of whom
one independent non-executive director represents minority shareholders. The Board has only one executive
director i.e. Chief Executive.

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than ten listed companies, including
this Company.

3. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment
of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a member of a Stock Exchange, has been declared
as a defaulter by that Stock Exchange.

4. Three casual vacancies occurred on the Board on August 22, 2006, March 16, 2007 and March 29, 2007.  All
vacancies were filled by the directors within thirty days thereof and the concerned directors have given a declaration
in their consent under clause (ii) of the Code of Corporate Governance.

5. The Company has prepared a "Statement of Ethics and Business Practices" , which has been signed by all the
directors and employees of the Company.

6. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and framed significant policies
as required by the Code.  The Board, however, will consider any amendment to these policies or any new policy(s)
as and when required. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they
were approved or amended has been maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and the Board has taken decisions on material transactions,
including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO.
The Chairman is a non-executive director and the roles and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive have
been clearly defined.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and the Board met at least once in every quarter.
Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days
before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

9. Directors are well conversant with the listing regulations, legal requirements and operational imperatives of the
Company, and as such fully aware of their duties and responsibilities. Further, the Company has been updating
them, in the board meetings held during the year, regarding their duties and responsibilities.



10. The Board approved the appointment of the Company Secretary and CFO including remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment, as determined by the CEO. On the basis of legal advice received, the Company believes
that in its case, the same person can act as Company Secretary and CFO. There was no new appointment of head
of internal audit.

11. The directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code and it fully
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval by the Board.

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed
in the Pattern of Shareholding.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

15. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three members, including the chairman of the committee,
all of whom are non-executive directors.

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter, prior to the approval of the interim
and final results of the Company, as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the committee have been
formulated and advised to the committee for compliance.

17. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function that is involved in internal audit activities on a full time
basis.

18. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they are maintaining a satisfactory rating under the
quality control review programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of the
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and
all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics
as adopted by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

19. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

20. We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

Farooq Rahmatullah
          Chairman

Karachi: August 27, 2007
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We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance
prepared by the Board of Directors of Pakistan Refinery Limited to comply with the Listing Regulation No. 37 of the
Karachi Stock Exchange and Chapter XIII of Lahore Stock Exchange where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code of Corporate
Governance and report if it does not. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We have not carried out any special
review of the internal control system to enable us to express an opinion as to whether the Board's statement on internal
controls covers all controls and the effectiveness of such internal controls.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in
the Code of Corporate Governance as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2007.

AA.. FF.. FFeerrgguussoonn && CCoo..
Chartered Accountants
Karachi: August 27, 2007

Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance
with Best Practices of Code of Corporate Governance

Pakistan Refinery Limited38



We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Pakistan Refinery Limited as at June 30, 2007 and the related profit and
loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for
the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare
and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by
management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance,
1984;

(b) in our opinion:

(i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are
further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied; 

(ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance
with the objects of the Company;

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet,
profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming
part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required
by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state
of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2007 and of the profit, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then
ended; and

(d) in our opinion no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

AA.. FF.. FFeerrgguussoonn && CCoo..
Chartered Accountants
Karachi: August 27, 2007

Auditors’ Report to the Members
for the year ended June 30, 2007
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Balance Sheet
as at June 30, 2007

NNoottee 22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

AASSSSEETTSS
NNoonn--ccuurrrreenntt aasssseettss
Fixed assets 4 995522,,111188 816,734
Investment in associate 5 5544,,007777 50,609
Long-term loans and advances 6 1100,,994433 11,231
Long-term deposits 22,,888877 2,887
Deferred taxation 7 3388,,558833 4,195
Retirement benefit obligations - prepayments 8 3399,,880099 31,893

11,,009988,,441177 917,549 
CCuurrrreenntt aasssseettss
Stores, spares and chemicals 9 222299,,337711 282,797
Stock-in-trade 10 55,,110077,,778811 3,843,622
Trade debts 11 44,,777799,,446655 3,674,774 
Loans and advances 12 2222,,443399 25,852 
Accrued interest / mark-up 13 77,,772266 1,271 
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 14 4499,,009911 56,025 
Other receivables 15 1155,,889911 3,532
Tax refunds due from Government - Sales tax 11,,447766,,330066 833,671 
Investments 16 220011,,776699 2,199 
Cash and bank balances 17 11,,669988,,227777 2,363,107

1133,,558888,,111166 11,086,850 
TToottaall aasssseettss 1144,,668866,,553333 12,004,399

EEQQUUIITTYY AANNDD LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS
Share capital 18 330000,,000000 250,000
Reserves 112299,,775511 77,030 
Special reserve 19 44,,337755,,333322 4,224,518 

44,,880055,,008833 4,551,548
LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS
NNoonn--ccuurrrreenntt lliiaabbiilliittiieess
Retirement benefit obligations 8 44,,337733 5,628
CCuurrrreenntt lliiaabbiilliittiieess
Trade and other payables 20 99,,552266,,992255 7,063,744
Accrued interest / mark-up 11,,998899 8,782
Short-term borrowings 21 -- 29,080 
Taxation - provision less payments 334488,,116633 345,617 

99,,887777,,007777 7,447,223 
TToottaall lliiaabbiilliittiieess 99,,888811,,445500 7,452,851 

Commitments 22

TToottaall eeqquuiittyy aanndd lliiaabbiilliittiieess 1144,,668866,,553333 12,004,399 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended June 30, 2007

NNoottee 22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

Sales 23 5577,,440044,,006655 60,963,200 

Cost of sales 24 ((5566,,662288,,111144)) (58,561,787)

Gross profit 777755,,995511 2,401,413

Distribution cost 24 ((8899,,443344)) (84,752)

Administrative expenses 24 ((113344,,997777)) (121,203)

Other operating expenses 25 ((4466,,225522)) (185,246)

Other income 26 7733,,774466 74,602 

Operating profit 557799,,003344 2,084,814 

Finance costs 27 ((8811,,771188)) (40,999)

Share of income of associate 66,,994499 19,568 

Profit before taxation 550044,,226655 2,063,383 

Taxation 28 ((225533,,445511)) (718,441)

Profit after taxation 225500,,881144 1,344,942 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 29 RRss..  88..3366 Rs.  44.83

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended June 30, 2007

NNoottee 22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

CCAASSHH FFLLOOWW FFRROOMM OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS

Cash generated from operations 34 3333,,551155 3,275,798

Mark-up paid ((8833,,443311)) (36,529)

Income taxes paid ((228855,,889944)) (839,761)

Payments for defined benefit retirement plans ((4400,,228888)) (49,621)

Long-term loans and advances (net) 228888 (3,374)

Net cash used in operating activities ((337755,,881100)) 2,346,513 

CCAASSHH FFLLOOWW FFRROOMM IINNVVEESSTTIINNGG AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS

Purchase of fixed assets ((226688,,991199)) (217,131)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 22,,225544 1,010 

Dividend received 66,,880033 5,528 

Net cash used in investing activities ((225599,,886622)) (210,593)

CCAASSHH FFLLOOWW FFRROOMM FFIINNAANNCCIINNGG AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS

Dividend paid ((7788)) (50,380)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents ((663355,,775500)) 2,085,540 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of  the year 35 22,,333344,,002277 248,487 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 35 11,,669988,,227777 2,334,027 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended June 30, 2007

SSHHAARREE RREESSEERRVVEESS SSPPEECCIIAALL TTOOTTAALL
CCAAPPIITTAALL CCAAPPIITTAALL RREEVVEENNUUEE FFAAIIRR VVAALLUUEE RREESSEERRVVEE

EExxcchhaannggee GGeenneerraall UUnnaapppprroopprriiaatteedd RREESSEERRVVEE
EEqquuaalliissaattiioonn RReesseerrvvee PPrrooffiitt

RReesseerrvvee
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

Balance as at June 30, 2005 200,000 897 1,050 69,698 12,608 2,979,576 3,263,829

Final dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2005
@ Rs. 2.5 per share -   -   -   (50,000) -   -   (50,000)

Net profit for the year 2006 -   -   -   1,344,942 -   -   1,344,942 

Change in fair value reserve on
account of available for sale
investment of associate -   -   -   -   (7,223) -   (7,223)

Transferred to Special Reserve -   -   -   (1,244,942) -   1,244,942 - 

Issue of 1 bonus share
for every 4 shares held 50,000 -   -   (50,000) -   -   - 

Balance as at June 30, 2006 250,000 897 1,050 69,698 5,385 4,224,518 4,551,548 

Issue of 1 bonus share
for every 5 shares held 50,000 -   -   (50,000) -   -   - 

Net profit for the year 2007 -   -   -   250,814   -   -   250,814

Change in fair value reserve on 
account of available for sale
investment of associate -   -   -   -   2,721 -   2,721 

Transferred to Special Reserve -   -   -   (150,814)   -   150,814   -

BBaallaannccee aass aatt JJuunnee 3300,, 22000077 330000,,000000 889977 11,,005500 111199,,669988 88,,110066 44,,337755,,333322 44,,880055,,008833

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2007

11.. TTHHEE CCOOMMPPAANNYY AANNDD IITTSS OOPPEERRAATTIIOONNSS

Pakistan Refinery Limited was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company in  May 1960 and is quoted
on Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges. The address of its registered office is Korangi Creek Road, Karachi. The
Company is engaged in the production and sale of petroleum products.

22.. SSUUMMMMAARRYY OOFF SSIIGGNNIIFFIICCAANNTT AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG PPOOLLIICCIIEESS

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:

22..11 BBaassiiss ooff pprreeppaarraattiioonn

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Approved accounting standards comprise
of such International Financial Reporting Standards as have been notified under the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984. Wherever, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or directives issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan differ from the requirements of these standards, the requirements
of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or the requirements of the said directives have been followed.

AAmmeennddmmeennttss ttoo ppuubblliisshheedd ssttaannddaarrddss aanndd nneeww iinntteerrpprreettaattiioonnss tthhaatt aarree eeffffeeccttiivvee iinn 22000066 aanndd rreelleevvaanntt

IAS 19 (Amendment) - Employee Benefits, is mandatory for the Company«s accounting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2006. It introduces the options of an alternative recognition approach for actuarial gains and losses.
It also adds new disclosure requirements. The Company does not intend to adopt the alternative approach for
recognition of actuarial gains and losses. Adoption of this amendment only impacts the format and extent of
disclosures as presented in note 8 to the financial statements.

SSttaannddaarrddss,, aammeennddmmeennttss aanndd iinntteerrpprreettaattiioonnss eeffffeeccttiivvee iinn 22000066 bbuutt nnoott rreelleevvaanntt

IFRIC 4 - Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, requires the determination that whether an
arrangement is or contains a lease to be based on the substance of the arrangement. It requires an assessment of
whether: (a) fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets (the asset); and
(b) the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. The Company has assessed its arrangements with its suppliers
and service providers and is of the view that none of these contain arrangements which meet the criteria for
recognition as Lease, as laid down in IFRIC 4. 

SSttaannddaarrddss,, iinntteerrpprreettaattiioonnss aanndd aammeennddmmeennttss ttoo ppuubblliisshheedd aapppprroovveedd aaccccoouunnttiinngg ssttaannddaarrddss tthhaatt aarree rreelleevvaanntt,, bbuutt nnoott
yyeett eeffffeeccttiivvee

Following amendments to existing standards and interpretations have been published that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on the dates mentioned below:

i. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Capital Disclosures effective from January 1, 2007

ii. IAS 23 Borrowing Cost effective from January 1, 2009

Adoption of the above amendments and interpretations are not expected to have any material effect on the
amounts recognised in these financial statements. 

22..22 OOvveerraallll vvaalluuaattiioonn ppoolliiccyy

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as stated below in the
respective policy notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2007

22..33 FFiixxeedd aasssseettss

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation except capital work-in-progress, which
is stated at cost.

Depreciation / amortisation is charged to income by applying the straight-line method whereby the cost less
residual value, if not insignificant, of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life to the Company. Full month's
depreciation / amortisation is charged in the month of acquisition and no depreciation / amortisation is charged
in the month of disposal. Cost of leasehold land is amortised fairly over the period of lease.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense
when incurred. However, costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Company and that have probable economic benefits exceeding their cost and beyond one year,
are recognised as intangible assets.

Assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if expectations significantly differ from previous
estimates, at each balance sheet date.

Company accounts for impairment, where indication exists, by reducing its carrying value to the assessed
recoverable amount.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Renewals and improvements are
capitalised and assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are included in income currently.

22..44 IInnvveessttmmeenntt iinn aassssoocciiaattee

Investment in associate is accounted for using equity method of accounting and is initially recognised at cost. The
Company's share in its associate post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income statement and its
share in post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Company
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

22..55 TTaaxxaattiioonn

22..55..11 Current 

Charge for the current taxation is based on applicable provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

22..55..22 Deferred

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax base
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
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22..66 SSttoorreess,, ssppaarreess aanndd cchheemmiiccaallss

These are valued at cost, determined using weighted average method, less provision for obsolescence. Items in
transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

22..77 SSttoocckk--iinn--ttrraaddee

Stock of crude oil is valued at lower of cost determined using ««first-in first-out«« method and net realisable value
except crude oil in transit which is valued at cost.  Finished products are valued at lower of cost and net realisable
value.  Cost in relation to finished products represents cost of crude oil and appropriate manufacturing overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

22..88 TTrraaddee ddeebbttss

Trade debts are carried at the fair value of consideration to be received against goods and services. Provision is
made in respect of doubtful debts, if any.

22..99 IInnvveessttmmeennttss

FFiinnaanncciiaall aasssseettss aatt ffaaiirr vvaalluuee tthhrroouugghh pprrooffiitt aanndd lloossss

Financial assets held for trading are classified in this category. These are initially measured at fair value which is
reassessed at each reporting date. In the case of investments in open ended mutual funds, fair value is determined
on the basis of  period end Net Asset Value (NAV) as announced by the Asset Management Company.

22..1100 CCaasshh aanndd ccaasshh eeqquuiivvaalleennttss

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, with banks on current, savings and deposit accounts, running
finance under mark-up arrangements and short-term finance.

22..1111 TTrraaddee aanndd ootthheerr ppaayyaabblleess

Trade and other payables are carried at the fair value of the consideration to be paid for goods and services.

22..1122 BBoorrrroowwiinngg ccoossttss

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred.

22..1133 PPrroovviissiioonnss

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2007
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22..1144 RReettiirreemmeenntt bbeenneeffiittss

The Company operates recognised Provident, Gratuity and Pension Funds for all its eligible employees. The
Provident Fund is a defined contribution plan. All others are defined benefit plans. Actuarial valuations of defined
benefit plans are carried out on periodical basis using the projected unit credit method and the latest valuations
were carried out at the balance sheet date (June 30, 2007). Actuarial gain / loss is amortised over a period of
11 years for the management staff gratuity and pension funds and 17 years for non-management staff pension and
gratuity funds, if it exceeds the 10% corridor limit. The unrecognised past service cost is amortised over its vesting
period.

22..1155 FFoorreeiiggnn ccuurrrreennccyy ttrraannssllaattiioonn

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the
respective transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated to rupees at rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses resulting from the above are recognised in the profit and
loss account.

22..1166 FFiinnaanncciiaall iinnssttrruummeennttss

All financial assets and liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. 

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair
values. Any gains and losses on derecognition of financial assets and liabilities are taken to income statement
currently.

22..1177 RReevveennuuee rreeccooggnniittiioonn

(a) Local sales are recorded on the basis of products pumped in oil marketing companies« tanks.

(b) Export sales are recorded on the basis of products shipped to customers.

(c) The prices of refinery products are notified by the Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) which are
primarily based on import parity pricing formula. However, in order to enable certain refineries including the
Company  to operate on a self financing basis, the Government effective from July 1, 2002 had introduced
a tariff protection formula under which deemed duty is built into the import parity based prices of some of
the products. Under this formula, any profit after taxation above 50% of the paid-up capital as it was on July
1, 2002 (Rs 200 million), is required to be transferred to a "Special Reserve" to offset any future losses or
to make investment for expansion or upgradation of the respective refineries. 

Discount on local crude, if any, wharfage and insurance is paid to Government.

(d) Dividends are recognised when the right of receipt is established.

(e) Income on bank deposits is recognised on accrual basis.

22..1188 GGoovveerrnnmmeenntt ggrraannttss

Government grants related to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement as a deduction from
the related expense over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2007
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2007

22..1199 DDiivviiddeennddss

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved.

33.. CCRRIITTIICCAALL AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG EESSTTIIMMAATTEESS,, JJUUDDGGEEMMEENNTTSS AANNDD PPOOLLIICCIIEESS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are provision for income tax and
provision for post employment benefits.

The Company recognises provision for income tax based on best current estimates. However, where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Significant estimates relating to post employment benefits are disclosed in note 8.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Management believes that the change in outcome of estimates would not have a material effect on the amounts
disclosed in the financial statements. 

No critical judgement has been used in applying the accounting policies.

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

44.. FFIIXXEEDD AASSSSEETTSS

Property, plant and equipment
Operating assets - note 4.1 880055,,884411 539,611 
Capital work-in-progress - note 4.2 112244,,883344 277,123

993300,,667755 816,734

Intangible asset - note 4.3 2211,,444433 -
995522,,111188 816,734
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2007

44..11 OOppeerraattiinngg aasssseettss

TT AA NN GG II BB LL EE TTOOTTAALL

LLeeaasseehhoolldd BBuuiillddiinnggss PPrroocceessssiinngg KKoorraannggii KKeeaammaarrii PPiippeelliinneess SStteeaamm PPoowweerr WWaatteerr EEqquuiippmmeenntt FFiirree VVeehhiicclleess

llaanndd aanndd oonn PPllaanntt ttaannkk tteerrmmiinnaall ggeenneerraattiioonn ggeenneerraattiioonn,, ttrreeaattmmeenntt iinncclluuddiinngg ffiigghhttiinngg aanndd

iimmpprroovveemmeennttss lleeaasseehhoolldd ffaarrmm ppllaanntt ttrraannssmmiissssiioonn aanndd ffuurrnniittuurree aanndd tteellee-- ootthheerr

tthheerreeoonn llaanndd aanndd ccoooolliinngg ccoommmmuunniiccaattiioonn aauuttoommoottiivvee

ddiissttrriibbuuttiioonn ssyysstteemm ssyysstteemmss eeqquuiippmmeenntt

((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd)) 

NNeett ccaarrrryyiinngg vvaalluuee bbaassiiss 

YYeeaarr eennddeedd JJuunnee 3300,, 22000077

Opening net book value (NBV) 2,225 27,936 193,486 51,576 32,570 59,722 19,865 17,628 32,579 83,777 10,033 8,214 539,611 

Additions (at cost) -   9,227 261,455 10,833 8,842 -   -   27,695 5,204 53,290 14,251 8,355 399,152 

Disposals (at NBV) -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (284) -   (528) (812)

Depreciation charge (39) (3,127) (71,578) (10,155) (2,893) (7,982) (3,654) (2,501) (5,181) (19,540) (1,287) (4,173) (132,110)

CClloossiinngg nneett bbooookk vvaalluuee 22,,118866 3344,,003366 338833,,336633 5522,,225544 3388,,551199 5511,,774400 1166,,221111 4422,,882222 3322,,660022 111177,,224433 2222,,999977 1111,,886688 880055,,884411

GGrroossss ccaarrrryyiinngg vvaalluuee bbaassiiss 

AAtt JJuunnee 3300,, 22000077 

Cost  3,939 59,308 763,699 159,065 96,887 100,096 44,378 61,258 60,300 286,690 35,552 45,568 1,716,740 

Accumulated depreciation (1,753) (25,272) (380,336) (106,811) (58,368) (48,356) (28,167) (18,436) (27,698) (169,447) (12,555) (33,700) (910,899)

NNeett bbooookk vvaalluuee 22,,118866 3344,,003366 338833,,336633 5522,,225544 3388,,551199 5511,,774400 1166,,221111 4422,,882222 3322,,660022 111177,,224433 2222,,999977 1111,,886688 880055,,884411 

Net carrying value basis

Year ended June 30, 2006 

Opening net book value (NBV) 2,264 21,200 243,360 60,748 35,957 24,054 11,159 14,916 37,582 85,007 10,719 5,525 552,491 

Additions (at cost) -   9,217 7,838 363 247 39,768 11,322 4,741 -   17,391 619 5,792 97,298 

Disposals (at NBV) -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (56) -   -   (56)

Depreciation charge (39) (2,481) (57,712) (9,535) (3,634) (4,100) (2,616) (2,029) (5,003) (18,565) (1,305) (3,103) (110,122)

Closing net book value 2,225 27,936 193,486 51,576 32,570 59,722 19,865 17,628 32,579 83,777 10,033 8,214 539,611 

Gross carrying value basis 

At June 30, 2006 

Cost  3,939 50,081 502,244 148,232 88,045 100,096 44,378 33,563 55,096 235,621 21,301 40,861 1,323,457 

Accumulated depreciation (1,714) (22,145) (308,758) (96,656) (55,475) (40,374) (24,513) (15,935) (22,517) (151,844) (11,268) (32,647) (783,846)

Net book value 2,225 27,936 193,486 51,576 32,570 59,722 19,865 17,628 32,579 83,777 10,033 8,214 539,611 

DDeepprreecciiaattiioonn rraattee

%% ppeerr aannnnuumm 11 55 ttoo 2200 1100 ttoo 3333 1100 55 ttoo 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100 1100 ttoo 3333 55 ttoo 1100 2255
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2007

44..11..11 Details of fixed assets disposed off during the year:

There were no disposals of assets having net book value exceeding Rs 50,000 except for a motor vechicle in respect
of which an insurance claim amounting to Rs 678,000 was received during the year.

Assets disposed off having net book value not exceeding Rs 50,000 are as follows:

DDeessccrriippttiioonn CCoosstt AAccccuummuullaatteedd BBooookk SSaallee
ddeepprreecciiaattiioonn vvaalluuee pprroocceeeeddss

((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

Equipment including
furniture (in aggregate) 1,563 1,279 284 352

Vehicles and other
automotive equipment (in aggregate) 3,058 3,058 -   1,224 

4,621 4,337 284 1,576 

AAsssseettss wwrriitttteenn ooffff

Equipment including
furniture (in aggregate) 658 658 -    -

5,279 4,995 284 1,576 

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

44..22 CCaappiittaall wwoorrkk--iinn--pprrooggrreessss -- aatt ccoosstt

Buildings 1177,,229922 11,268 
Processing plant 1133,,995588 198,022 
Korangi tank farm 5522,,445544 33,442 
Keamari terminal 99,,555544 5,682 
Pipelines 33,,445555 1,518 
Steam generation plant - 228
Power generation, transmission and distribution 55,,999966 53
Water treatment and cooling systems 55,,110033 7,454 
Equipment  1122,,880066 18,239 
Fire fighting and telecommunication systems 44,,221166 1,217 

112244,,883344 277,123
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2007

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

44..33 IInnttaannggiibbllee -- CCoommppuutteerr ssooffttwwaarree

Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value (NBV) -- -
Additions (at cost) - note 4.3.1 2222,,005566
Amortisation charge ((661133)) -
Closing net book value 2211,,444433 -   

Gross carrying value basis

Cost 3333,,883344 11,778
Accumulated amortisation ((1122,,339911)) (11,778)
Net book value 2211,,444433 -
Amortisation is charged at the rate of 33.33% per annum.

44..33..11 This represents capitalisation of a computer software named 'Advanced Process Control' (APC) for crude unit
(CDU). 

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

55.. IINNVVEESSTTMMEENNTT IINN AASSSSOOCCIIAATTEE

Investment in related party

In an unquoted associated company - equity method

850,401 (2006: 850,401) fully paid ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each of Pak Grease Manufacturing Company
(Private) Limited - note 5.1 5544,,007777 50,609

55..11 The Company holds 27.26% (2006: 27.26%) of the investee's total equity.

Opening balance 5500,,660099 50,298 
Share of income for the year 66,,994499 19,568
Change in fair value reserve on account of available for sale investment 33,,332222 (13,729)
Dividend received ((66,,880033)) (5,528)

5544,,007777 50,609 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2007

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

55..22 Summarised results of the Company's associate
(2007: unaudited) are as follows:

Total assets 221155,,557700 209,780 
Total liabilities 1177,,220066 25,141
Revenue 116655,,559999 171,350 
Profit after tax 2255,,449911 70,787 

66.. LLOONNGG--TTEERRMM LLOOAANNSS AANNDD AADDVVAANNCCEESS
-- sseeccuurreedd aanndd ccoonnssiiddeerreedd ggoooodd

To executives 66,,112200 6,864
To other employees 1144,,229922 13,211

2200,,441122 20,075
Recoverable within one year - note 12

Executives ((33,,222211)) (2,865)
Other employees ((66,,224488)) (5,979)

((99,,446699)) (8,844)
1100,,994433 11,231

Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives
Opening balance 66,,886644 2,135
Promotion to executive 6633 562
Disbursements 44,,551144 6,236
Repayments ((55,,332211)) (2,069)

66,,112200 6,864

The maximum amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 7.33 million (2006:
Rs 6.86 million).

The loans and advances to all eligible employees are given in accordance with the Company«s policy for payment
of house rent, to defray personal expenditure and for purchase of motor vehicles. These carry interest ranging from
1% to 10% per annum and are repayable over a period of three to six years.

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

77.. DDEEFFEERRRREEDD TTAAXXAATTIIOONN

Debit / (Credit) balance arising in respect of temporary differences:

stores, spares and chemicals 88,,775566 7,389 
property, plant and equipment ((77,,885522)) (707)
investment in associate ((55,,332200)) (2,487)
excess of minimum tax over normal tax - note 7.1 4422,,999999 -

3388,,558833 4,195

77..11 Management believes that sufficient profits will be available in future periods to take benefit of excess of minimum
tax paid over normal tax.
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88.. RREETTIIRREEMMEENNTT BBEENNEEFFIITTSS

PPEENNSSIIOONN FFUUNNDDSS GGRRAATTUUIITTYY FFUUNNDDSS

MMaannaaggeemmeenntt NNoonn--MMaannaaggeemmeenntt MMaannaaggeemmeenntt NNoonn--MMaannaaggeemmeenntt

22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066

((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

88..11 EExxppeennssee // ((iinnccoommee))

rreeccooggnniisseedd dduurriinngg tthhee yyeeaarr

Current service cost 1166,,335511 13,923 883344 586 22,,885566 2,508 556622 450 

Interest cost 3388,,336677 34,048 22,,221100 1,844 44,,222277 3,610 772299 553

Expected return on plan assets ((3388,,002277)) (31,661) ((331155)) (372) ((44,,220077)) (3,585) ((22,,220044)) (1,866)

Amortisation of past service cost 114455 145 554433 543 -- -   -- -

Net actuarial loss / (gain)

recognised -- -   667733 343 -- -   ((448844)) (437)

1166,,883366 16,455 33,,994455 2,944 22,,887766 2,533 ((11,,339977)) (1,300)

Amount not recognised as an asset -- - -- -   11,,001144 -   77,,884433 -  

1166,,883366 16,455 33,,994455 2,944 33,,889900 2,533 66,,444466 (1,300)

88..22 BBaallaannccee sshheeeett rreeccoonncciilliiaattiioonn

Prepayment / (liability) as at July 1 2277,,778800 (333) ((55,,662288)) (2,684) 22,,666677 (4,853) 66,,444466 5,146

(Expense) / income recognised

during  the year ((1166,,883366)) (16,455) ((33,,994455)) (2,944) ((33,,889900)) (2,533) ((66,,444466)) 1,300

Contributions 2288,,770055 39,568 55,,220000 -   66,,338833 10,053 -- -

Prepayment / (liability) as at June 30 3344,,664499 22,780 ((44,,337733)) (5,628) 55,,116600 2,667 -- 6,446

88..33 PPrreeppaayymmeenntt // ((lliiaabbiilliittyy)) aass aatt JJuunnee 3300

Present value of obligations to members ((445511,,441122)) (424,303) ((2200,,776699)) (24,634) ((4488,,554444)) (48,401) ((66,,112200)) (8,283)

Obligation to company -- -   -- -   -- -   ((22,,007711)) (2,071)

Fair value of plan assets 445566,,444400 421,475 77,,774400 3,301 5555,,887711 48,165 3311,,332255 25,654

Funded status 55,,002288 (2,828) ((1133,,002299)) (21,333) 77,,332277 (236) 2233,,113344 15,300

Unrecognised net actuarial loss / (gain) 2288,,002288 23,870 44,,771111 11,217 ((11,,115533)) 2,903 ((1155,,229911)) (8,854)

Unrecognised past service cost 11,,559933 1,738 33,,994455 4,488 -- -   -- -  

Amount not recognised as an asset -- -   -- -   ((11,,001144)) -   ((77,,884433)) -

Prepayment / (liability) as at June 30 3344,,664499 22,780 ((44,,337733)) (5,628) 55,,116600 2,667 -- 6,446

Actual return on plan assets 3355,,661199 40,135 119977 183 88,,002233 8,009 55,,667711 4,227
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PPEENNSSIIOONN FFUUNNDDSS GGRRAATTUUIITTYY FFUUNNDDSS

MMaannaaggeemmeenntt NNoonn--MMaannaaggeemmeenntt MMaannaaggeemmeenntt NNoonn--MMaannaaggeemmeenntt

22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066

((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

88..44 MMoovveemmeenntt iinn ddeeffiinneedd bbeenneeffiitt oobblliiggaattiioonn

Beginning of the year 442244,,330033 377,061 2244,,663344 20,709 4488,,440011 39,985 88,,228833 5,954

Current service cost 1166,,335511 13,923 883344 586 22,,885566 2,508 556622 450

Interest cost 3388,,336677 34,048 22,,221100 1,844 44,,222277 3,610 772299 553

Acturial (gains) / losses 11,,775500 11,722 ((55,,995511)) 2,472 ((224400)) 3,729 ((33,,445544)) 1,326

Actual benefits paid by the Fund

during the year ((2299,,335599)) (12,451) ((995588)) (977) ((66,,770000)) (1,431) -- -

End of year 445511,,441122 424,303 2200,,776699 24,634 4488,,554444 48,401 66,,112200 8,283

88..55 MMoovveemmeenntt iinn tthhee ffaaiirr vvaalluuee ooff ppllaann aasssseettss

Beginning of the year 442211,,447755 351,129 33,,330011 4,095 4488,,116655 39,695 2255,,665544 21,427

Adjustment ((33,,009944)) 3,094 -- - -- (8,161) -- -

441188,,338811 354,223 33,,330011 4,095 4488,,116655 31,534 2255,,665544 21,427

Expected return on assets 3388,,002277 31,661 331155 372 44,,220077 3,585 22,,220044 1,866 

Actual contributions by the employer 2288,,770055 39,568 55,,220000 -   66,,338833 10,053 -- -

Actual benefits paid by the

Fund during the year ((2299,,335599)) (12,451) ((995588)) (977) ((66,,770000)) (1,431) -- -

Asset Gain / (Loss) 668866 8,474 ((111188)) (189) 33,,881166 4,424 33,,446677 2,361

End of year 445566,,444400 421,475 77,,774400 3,301 5555,,887711 48,165 3311,,332255 25,654

22000077 22000066

88..66 The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate 1100%% 9%

Expected return on plan assets 1100%% 9%

Future salary increases 1100%% 9%

Future pension increases 55%% 4%
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22000077 22000066 22000055 22000044 22000033
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

88..77 CCoommppaarriissoonn ffoorr ffiivvee yyeeaarrss

MMAANNAAGGEEMMEENNTT PPEENNSSIIOONN FFUUNNDD

Present value of defined
benefit obligation ((445511,,441122)) (424,303) (377,061) (315,022) (278,258)

Obligation to Company -- -   -   (8,522) - 
Fair value of plan assets 445566,,444400 421,475 351,129 311,579 265,996 
Surplus/(Deficit) 55,,002288 (2,828) (25,932) (11,965) (12,262)

Experience loss on obligation 11,,775500 11,722 44,420 22,764 54,729
Experience (loss)/gain on plan assets ((22,,440088)) 8,474 35,602 26,710 17,240

NNOONN--MMAANNAAGGEEMMEENNTT
PPEENNSSIIOONN FFUUNNDD

Present value of defined
benefit obligation ((2200,,776699)) (24,634) (20,709) (22,618) (18,333)

Fair value of plan assets 77,,774400 3,301 4,095  4,737  5,006
Deficit ((1133,,002299)) (21,333) (16,614) (17,881) (13,327)

Experience (gain)/loss on obligation ((55,,995511)) 2,472 3,335 3,158 (1,974)
Experience (loss)/gain on plan assets ((111188)) (189) (164) (171) 110

MMAANNAAGGEEMMEENNTT GGRRAATTUUIITTYY FFUUNNDD

Present value of defined
benefit obligation ((4488,,554444)) (48,401) (39,985) (33,233) (30,694)

Obligation to Company - -   (8,162) (2,134) -
Fair value of plan assets 5555,,887711 48,165 39,695 33,927 30,105 
Surplus/(Deficit) 77,,332277 (236) (8,452) (1,440) (589)

Experience (gain)/loss on obligation ((224400)) 3,729 4,856 3,398 4,309 
Experience gain on plan assets 33,,881166 4,424 3,230 2,551 1,519

NNOONN--MMAANNAAGGEEMMEENNTT
GGRRAATTUUIITTYY FFUUNNDD

Present value of defined
benefit obligation ((66,,112200)) (8,283) (5,954) (8,852) (8,256)

Obligation to Company ((22,,007711)) (2,071) (2,071) (1,395) -
Fair value of plan assets 3311,,332255 25,654 21,427 18,019 15,427 
Surplus 2233,,113344 15,300 13,402 7,772 7,171

Experience (gain)/loss on obligation ((33,,445544)) 1,326 (56) 725 (3,648)
Experience gain on plan assets 33,,446677 2,361 1,892 1,518 837
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PPEENNSSIIOONN FFUUNNDDSS GGRRAATTUUIITTYY FFUUNNDDSS

MMaannaaggeemmeenntt NNoonn--MMaannaaggeemmeenntt MMaannaaggeemmeenntt NNoonn--MMaannaaggeemmeenntt

22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066

88..88 PPllaann aasssseettss ccoommpprriissee tthhee ffoolllloowwiinngg::

Equity 66..66%% 13.4% 00..00%% 0.0% 00..66%% 0.1% 00..77%% 0.7%

Debt 9922..55%% 86.0% 9966..99%% 76.5% 9933..99%% 93.4% 9999..33%% 99.3%

Others 00..99%% 0.6% 33..11%% 23.5% 55..55%% 6.5% 00..00%% 0.0%

110000%% 100% 110000%% 100% 110000%% 100% 110000%% 100%

22000077 22000066
YYeeaarrss

The average life expectancy of a pensioner retiring at age 60 on the
balance sheet  date is as follows:

Male 1166..88 16.8
Female 2211..22 21.2

The average life expectancy of a pensioner retiring at age 60, 20 years
after the balance sheet date is as follows:

Male 1177..88 17.8
Female 2211..77 21.7

88..99 During the year, Company recognised Rs. 7.83 million (2006: Rs. 6.89 million) as contribution for employees«
provident fund. 
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22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

99.. SSTTOORREESS,, SSPPAARREESS AANNDD CCHHEEMMIICCAALLSS

Stores 2233,,663344 67,735 
Spares 221144,,334477 217,545 
Chemicals 1166,,440066 18,627 

225544,,338877 303,907
Provision for slow moving stores, spares and chemicals ((2255,,001166)) (21,110)

222299,,337711 282,797

1100.. SSTTOOCCKK--IINN--TTRRAADDEE 

Raw material
Crude oil [including in transit Rs. 38.50 million
(2006: Rs. 12.65 million)] 33,,227799,,887788 2,642,301 

Finished products 11,,882277,,990033 1,201,321 
55,,110077,,778811 3,843,622

1111.. TTRRAADDEE DDEEBBTTSS -- ccoonnssiiddeerreedd ggoooodd

Due from related parties - note 11.1 44,,111122,,117744 2,718,432
Others 666677,,229911 956,342 

44,,777799,,446655 3,674,774

1111..11 These represent receivables from Pakistan State Oil Company Limited, Shell Pakistan Limited and Chevron (Pakistan)
Limited and are in the normal course of business.

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

1122.. LLOOAANNSS AANNDD AADDVVAANNCCEESS -- ccoonnssiiddeerreedd ggoooodd

Loans and advances recoverable within one year - note 6
Executives 33,,222211 2,865 
Other employees 66,,224488 5,979 

99,,446699 8,844
Advances for supplies and services 1122,,997700 17,008

2222,,443399 25,852

1133.. AACCCCRRUUEEDD IINNTTEERREESSTT // MMAARRKK UUPP

This represents interest accrued on term deposits.
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22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

1144.. TTRRAADDEE DDEEPPOOSSIITTSS AANNDD SSHHOORRTT--TTEERRMM PPRREEPPAAYYMMEENNTTSS

Trade deposits 666644 580 
Short-term prepayments 4488,,442277 55,445 

4499,,009911 56,025

1155.. OOTTHHEERR RREECCEEIIVVAABBLLEESS

Receivable from related parties
Provident Fund 11,,887766 -
Non-management staff gratuity fund 22,,007711 2,071

Insurance commission receivable - note 15.1 77,,660066 -
Workers' profits participation fund - note 20.4 22,,991155 -
Others 11,,442233 1,461

1155,,889911 3,532

1155..11 The balance includes Rs 6.98 million receivable from Central Insurance Company Limited.

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

1166.. IINNVVEESSTTMMEENNTTSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Investment in open ended mutual fund - held for trading 
1,830,198 (2006: 19,948) units of United Money Market Fund 220011,,776699 2,199

1177.. CCAASSHH AANNDD BBAANNKK BBAALLAANNCCEESS

With banks on
current accounts 1133,,335500 3,454
savings accounts 665522,,008822 454,277 
term deposits - 17.1 11,,002277,,779944 1,900,000

Cash and cheques in hand 55,,005511 5,376
11,,669988,,227777 2,363,107

1177..11 This includes an amount of Rs 725 million that has been deposited for a period of 90 days in accordance with the
notification of MoP & NR as described in note 20.2.

1177..22 As at June 30, 2007 the effective rates of mark-up on savings accounts and term deposits range from  0.50 % to
12 % per annum (2006: 0.75 % to 10 % p.a). Maturity of term deposits ranges from 2 days to 89 days (2006: 3 days
to 86 days).
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22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

1188.. SSHHAARREE CCAAPPIITTAALL

Authorised

40,000,000 'A' ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 440000,,000000 400,000 

60,000,000 'B' ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 660000,,000000 600,000 

11,,000000,,000000 1,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

22000077 22000066

22,,440000,,000000 2,400,000 «A« ordinary shares fully paid in cash 2244,,000000 24,000 

33,,660000,,000000 3,600,000 «B« ordinary shares fully paid in cash 3366,,000000 36,000 

66,,000000,,000000 6,000,000 6600,,000000 60,000 

99,,660000,,000000 7,600,000 «A« ordinary shares issued as fully paid
bonus shares 9966,,000000 76,000  

1144,,440000,,000000 11,400,000 «B« ordinary shares issued as fully paid
bonus shares 114444,,000000 114,000  

2244,,000000,,000000 19,000,000 224400,,000000 190,000

3300,,000000,,000000 25,000,000 330000,,000000 250,000 

22000077 22000066
NNuummbbeerr ooff SShhaarreess

((iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

1188..11 RREECCOONNCCIILLIIAATTIIOONN OOFF NNUUMMBBEERR OOFF OORRDDIINNAARRYY
SSHHAARREESS OOUUTTSSTTAANNDDIINNGG

At the beginning of the year 2255,,000000 20,000 
Issue of 1 bonus share for every 5 (2006: 4) shares held - Note 18.2 55,,000000 5,000 
At the end of the year 3300,,000000 25,000

1188..22 IIssssuuee ooff bboonnuuss sshhaarreess

The Company made a bonus issue of 20% (i.e. one bonus share for every five shares held) accumulating to Rs. 50
million out of the reserves available as at June 30, 2006 in its annual general meeting held on September 21, 2006.

1188..33 As at June 30, 2007 the number of ordinary shares held by associates was 18,009,580 shares of Rs. 10 each
(2006: 17,341,317).
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1199.. SSPPEECCIIAALL RREESSEERRVVEE

This represents the reserve created under the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources« (the Ministry) directive
making the new tariff protection formula applicable to the Company, as described in note 2.17(c). This amount is
not available for distribution to shareholders.

The Ministry through its directive further clarified that the refineries can distribute dividend out of net profit after
tax up to a maximum of 50% of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of applicability of the tariff
protection formula i.e. July 1, 2002 and the remaining amount should be transferred to the Special Reserve.

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

2200.. TTRRAADDEE AANNDD OOTTHHEERR PPAAYYAABBLLEESS

Creditors - note 20.1 and 20.2 88,,446655,,669933 6,324,011
Accrued liabilities 119966,,222288 157,076
Advances from Customers- note 20.1 112277,,448833 11,114
Payable to the Government - note 20.3 666677,,229988 468,731
Retention money 33,,996699 1,046 
Workers' profits participation fund - note 20.4 -- 21,515
Workers' welfare fund 4444,,226633 58,986
Unclaimed dividend 1188,,997711 19,049
Tax deducted at source 22,,003333 702
Others 998877 1,514

99,,552266,,992255 7,063,744

2200..11 RReellaatteedd ppaarrttyy bbaallaanncceess

Creditors 33,,001133 18,957 
Advances from customers 2200,,001144 8,051

2200..11..11 These include payables to Central Insurance Company Limited,  and advances from Pakistan State Oil Company
Limited, Shell Gas LPG (Pakistan) Limited and Chevron (Pakistan) Limited.

2200..22 These include Rs 1.36 billion representing amount payable in respect of local crude supplies exceeding the maximum
slab rates for calculation of discount to government as provided in the respective Crude Oil Sale and Purchase
Agreements (COSAs). The Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources (MoP & NR) through its directive dated
December 17, 2005 instructed the refineries to withhold such payments until the matter is resolved among the
parties to the above agreements. Further, through another directive dated December 23, 2006 MoP & NR instructed
refineries to release 50% of the amount witheld to all the producers in respect of fields of which COSAs are not
finalised and to deposit the remaining 50% in 90 days interest bearing accounts.
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2200..33 The balance is net of Rs 134 million receivable from the Government of Pakistan in respect of price differential claims.
Such claims resulted from restricting the ex-refinery prices charged by the Company to the oil marketing companies
on instructions from the MoP & NR. 

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

2200..44 WWOORRKKEERRSS«« PPRROOFFIITT PPAARRTTIICCIIPPAATTIIOONN FFUUNNDD

Balance as at July 1 2211,,551155 139,430 

Allocation for the year 2277,,110066 110,736 

Interest on funds utilised in company's business 446644 1,349 

4499,,008855 251,515 

Amount paid to

Trustees ((3300,,000000)) -

Government ((2222,,000000)) (230,000)

((5522,,000000)) (230,000)

Balance as at June 30 ((22,,991155)) 21,515 

2211.. SSHHOORRTT--TTEERRMM BBOORRRROOWWIINNGGSS

RRuunnnniinngg ffiinnaannccee uunnddeerr mmaarrkk--uupp aarrrraannggeemmeennttss

The running finance facilities available under mark-up arrangements from various banks amounted to Rs 2.57 billion
(2006: Rs 2.57 billion).

The arrangements are secured by way of hypothecation over stock of crude oil and finished products and trade
debts of the Company.

The rates of mark-up range between 9.12 % to 11.5 % per annum as at June 30, 2007 (2006: 9.54% to 10.46% per
annum). The purchase prices are payable by November, 2007.

2211..11 UUnnuuttiilliisseedd ccrreeddiitt ffaacciilliittyy

The facility for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at June 30, 2007 amounted to  Rs 13.29 billion (2006:
Rs 12.90 billion) of which the amount remaining unutilised at year end was Rs 11.4 billion (2006: Rs 11.00 billion).
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2222.. CCOOMMMMIITTMMEENNTTSS

2222..11 Aggregate commitments for capital expenditure as at June 30, 2007 amounted to approximately Rs 18.89 million
(2006: Rs 38.56 million).

2222..22 Commitments for rentals under lease agreements amounted to Rs 32.19 million (2006: Rs 18.84 million), payable
as follows:

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

Not later than 1 year 99,,447777 5,890 

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 2222,,771177 12,952 

3322,,119944 18,842 

2233.. SSAALLEESS

Gross sales - note 23.1 and 23.2 6677,,338855,,992200 71,991,159 

Less:

- Sales tax ((77,,668811,,779966)) (8,602,757)

- Excise duty and development surcharge - note 23.3 ((22,,330000,,005599)) (2,425,202)

5577,,440044,,006655 60,963,200 

2233..11 These include price differential claims from the Government amounting to  Rs 86.21 million (2006: Rs. 105.36
million) - Note 23.3

2233..22 Sales pertaining to the year are based on prices notified by OGRA which are subject to policy clarification from the
Federal Government. Any subsequent adjustment arising therefrom shall be accounted for as and when the said
policy is finalised.

2233..33 Excise duty invoiced to customers in line with Federal Excise Act, 2005 has been included in the gross sales and
separately presented as a deduction therefrom. Effective June 10, 2007, excise duty has been withdrawn.
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2244.. OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG CCOOSSTTSS

CCoosstt ooff ssaalleess DDiissttrriibbuuttiioonn ccoosstt AAddmmiinniissttrraattiivvee eexxppeennsseess TToottaall
22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066 22000077 22000066

((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

Crude oil consumed - note 24.1 5566,,331177,,775522 58,288,867 -- -   -- -   5566,,331177,,775522 58,288,867

Stores, spares and chemicals 114488,,991199 84,894 -- -   -- - 114488,,991199 84,894

Consultancy 1100,,007788 24,421 -- -   -- - 1100,,007788 24,421

Transportation and
handling charges -- -   33,,000000 18,708 -- - 33,,000000 18,708

Fuel, power and water 224477,,779944 244,566 66,,339900 6,117 11,,779933 1,608 225555,,997777 252,291 

Salaries and wages 119988,,221100 158,579 1177,,223300 13,361 5588,,005577 47,063 227733,,449977 219,003

Retirement benefits 3300,,000044 20,870 22,,002200 1,706 66,,992211 4,942 3388,,994455 27,518

Repairs and maintenance 9922,,663388 66,880 1155,,553300 8,495 22,,008888 1,702 111100,,225566 77,077

Insurance 3344,,773300 32,657 1122,,558800 11,558 33,,994466 2,719 5511,,225566 46,934

Staff transport 99,,774422 9,076 11,,554499 1,279 44,,336622 3,186 1155,,665533 13,541 

Lease rentals 44,,112233 2,756 332266 171 44,,115544 2,733 88,,660033 5,660

Depreciation 111155,,003355 88,276 1111,,440088 12,695 55,,666677 9,151 113322,,111100 110,122

Amortisation of intangible 661133 -   -- -   -- - 661133 -

Travelling and entertainment 44,,775533 7,000 440055 469 88,,779944 11,122 1133,,995522 18,591 

Subscription 44,,888888 3,717 22,,991166 1,664 22,,339955 962  1100,,119999 6,343 

Rent, rates and taxes 1199,,448855 12,247 1122,,662288 5,796 -- -   3322,,111133 18,043

Security expenses 77,,221100 6,015 22,,881122 2,148 -- -   1100,,002222 8,163 

Publicity -- -   - -   22,,446611 1,957 22,,446611 1,957

Printing and stationery -- -   - -   44,,224477 3,845 44,,224477 3,845

Computer related and software
license expenses -- -   - - 44,,992299 7,494 44,,992299 7,494

Communication -- -   - - 55,,335533 5,906 55,,335533 5,906

Directors' fee -- -   - -   227722 272 227722 272

Legal and professional

charges -- -   - -   44,,886611 3,252 44,,886611 3,252

Auditors' remuneration - note 24.2 -- -   - -   33,,669944 3,859 33,,669944 3,859

Other expenses 88,,772222 6,184 664400 585 1100,,998833 9,430 2200,,334455 16,199

Cost of goods manufactured 5577,,225544,,669966 59,057,005 8899,,443344 84,752 113344,,997777 121,203 5577,,447799,,110077 59,262,960

Opening stock of finished
products 11,,220011,,332211 706,103

Closing stock of finished
products ((11,,882277,,990033)) (1,201,321)

5566,,662288,,111144 58,561,787 

2244..11 CCrruuddee ooiill ccoonnssuummeedd

Opening stock 22,,664422,,330011 1,334,846 

Purchases 5566,,008866,,778822 59,034,938 

Discount to Government 886688,,554477 561,384 

Closing stock ((33,,227799,,887788)) (2,642,301)

5566,,331177,,775522 58,288,867 
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22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

2244..22 AAuuddiittoorrss'' rreemmuunneerraattiioonn

Audit fee 555500 500 
Taxation services 11,,550000 1,635
Limited review, special reports and certifications, consultation

services and audit of staff retirement funds 11,,339944 1,474
Out of pocket expenses 225500 250

33,,669944 3,859

2255.. OOTTHHEERR OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG EEXXPPEENNSSEESS

Donations - note 25.1 88,,885555 21,191 
Workers' profits participation fund 2277,,110066 110,736 
Workers' welfare fund 1100,,229911 39,257
Reversal of accrued interest income -- 14,062 

4466,,225522 185,246

2255..11 DDoonnaattiioonnss

Donations include the following in whom a director, Mr. Farooq Rahmatullah is interested:

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

IInntteerreesstt iinn DDoonneeee NNaammee aanndd aaddddrreessss ooff DDoonneeee

Member Resource Aga Khan University Hospital
Development Committee Stadium Road, Karachi 11,,000000 1,000

2266.. OOTTHHEERR IINNCCOOMMEE

Income from financial assets
Profit on savings accounts and term deposits 3377,,118877 32,064 
Gain on redemption of open ended mutual fund units 22,,444444 2,180 
Gain on re-measurement of fair value of open ended
mutual fund units 11,,776699 19 

OOtthheerrss
Rent of equipment, storage and handling charges
[including Rs 1.58 million (2006: Rs 2.54 million) from
related parties] 1100,,005500 22,116 

Insurance commission [including Rs 6.98 million
(2006: Rs 5.38 million) from a related party] 77,,660066 7,097

Sale of scrap 77,,225500 9,719 
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 11,,444422 954 
Others 55,,999988 453 

7733,,774466 74,602
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22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

2277.. FFIINNAANNCCEE CCOOSSTTSS

Mark-up on
running finance under mark-up arrangements 7766,,663388 28,834
short-term finance -- 6,968

Interest on workers' profits participation fund 446644 1,349
Bank charges 11,,331166 1,604
Exchange loss 33,,330000 2,244

8811,,771188 40,999 

2288.. TTAAXXAATTIIOONN

Current - for the year 228888,,444400 726,621
Deferred ((3344,,998899)) (8,180)

225533,,445511 718,441

2288..11 RReellaattiioonnsshhiipp bbeettwweeeenn ttaaxx eexxppeennssee aanndd aaccccoouunnttiinngg pprrooffiitt

AAccccoouunnttiinngg pprrooffiitt 550044,,226655 2,063,383

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 35% 117766,,449933 722,184
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2244,,229955 27,445
Income not subject to tax ((11,,447755)) (763)
Effect of applicability of final tax 5544,,113388 (30,425)
Tax expense for the year 225533,,445511 718,441

2299.. EEAARRNNIINNGGSS PPEERR SSHHAARREE

Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders 225500,,881144 1,344,942

Number (in thousand) of ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 
issued and subscribed at the end of the year 3300,,000000 30,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share RRss.. 88..3366 Rs. 44.83

For the purposes of calculating earnings per share, number of ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2006 has
been increased to reflect the bonus shares issued during the year.
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3300.. RREEMMUUNNEERRAATTIIOONN OOFF DDIIRREECCTTOORRSS,, CCHHIIEEFF EEXXEECCUUTTIIVVEE AANNDD EEXXEECCUUTTIIVVEESS

The aggregate amounts of remuneration including all benefits to Directors, Chief Executive and Executives of the Company are as follows

22000077 22000066
DDiirreeccttoorrss CChhiieeff EExxeeccuuttiivvee EExxeeccuuttiivveess DDiirreeccttoorrss CChhiieeff EExxeeccuuttiivvee EExxeeccuuttiivveess 

((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

Fees 227722 -- -- 264 -  - 
Managerial remuneration 111133 44,,332277 6600,,113355 112 3,643 36,977 
Honorarium 660000 -- -- - -   -
Retirement benefits -- 11,,001188 1122,,888822 - 786 8,486 
Housing -- 11,,335511 1155,,886633 -  1,043 11,000 
Utilities -- 330000 33,,773322 -   232 2,383 
Leave passage -- 334488 44,,226600 - 304 2,810
Club memberships -- -- 11,,551155 -   1,101 2,541 
Others 3366 7722 33,,663300 -   24 1,874 

3366 22,,007711 2299,,000000 -   2,704 20,608 
11,,002211 77,,441166 110022,,001177 376 7,133 66,071 

Number of persons 1100 11 3366 10 1 27

One director, the Chief Executive and certain executives of the company are provided with free use of cars and household equipments.

22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

3311.. TTRRAANNSSAACCTTIIOONNSS WWIITTHH RREELLAATTEEDD PPAARRTTIIEESS

RReellaattiioonnsshhiipp NNaattuurree ooff ttrraannssaaccttiioonn

1 Associated companies Dividend received 66,,880033 5,528

Sale of goods 4444,,779966,,001122 51,905,188

Sale of services 11,,558800 2,265

Purchase of services 1133,,229977 35,714

2 Entities whose directors and that

of the Company have been

appointed by the same person(s) Sale of goods 11,,220066,,008899 -

Sale of certain products is transacted at prices fixed by the Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority. Other transactions with related parties are carried
out on commercially negotiated terms.
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22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

Key management compensation:

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 4433,,772222 32,561
Post-employment benefits 66,,111155 4,546

4499,,883377 37,107

The status of outstanding balances in respect of related parties as at June 30, 2007 is included in trade debts, other
receivables and trade and other payables.

3322.. CCAAPPAACCIITTYY AANNDD AACCTTUUAALL PPEERRFFOORRMMAANNCCEE

Against the designed nominal annual capacity of 2,133,705 metric tons, the actual throughput during the year
excluding turnaround period of 28 days for which the refinery remained shut down was 1,978,563 metric tons
(2006: 2,176,818 metric tons).

3333.. FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL IINNSSTTRRUUMMEENNTTSS

3333..11 Financial assets and liabilities

IInntteerreesstt // MMaarrkk--uupp bbeeaarriinngg NNoonn--iinntteerreesstt bbeeaarriinngg TToottaall
MMaattuurriittyy uupp MMaattuurriittyy TToottaall MMaattuurriittyy uupp MMaattuurriittyy TToottaall

ttoo oonnee aafftteerr oonnee ttoo oonnee aafftteerr oonnee
yyeeaarr yyeeaarr yyeeaarr yyeeaarr

((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL AASSSSEETTSS

Loans to employees 6,986 8,976 15,962 2,483 1,967 4,450 20,412 

Deposits -   -   -   -   2,887 2,887 2,887 

Trade debts -   -   -   4,779,465  -   4,779,465   4,779,465

Accrued interest / mark-up -   -   -   7,726   -   7,726   7,726

Other receivables -   -   -   12,976   -   12,976   12,976

Financial assets at fair value

through profit and loss -   -   -   201,769  -   201,769   201,769   

Cash and bank balances 1,679,876   -   1,679,876 18,401   -   18,401    1,698,277

22000077 11,,668866,,886622 88,,997766 11,,669955,,883388 55,,002222,,882200 44,,885544 55,,002277,,667744 66,,772233,,551122

2006 2,361,375 8,603 2,369,978 3,693,013 4,854 3,697,867 6,067,845 

FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS

Trade and other payables -   -   -   9,353,146  -   9,353,146  9,353,146   

Accrued interest / mark-up -   -   -   1,989  -   1,989   1,989   

22000077 --   --   --   99,,335555,,113355   --   99,,335555,,113355   99,,335555,,113355

2006 29,080 -   29,080 6,980,209 -   6,980,209 7,009,289 
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3333..22 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view
to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise risk.

Taken as a whole, risk arising from the company's financial instruments is limited as there is no significant exposure
to price and cash flow risk in respect of such instruments. 

(i) Concentration of credit risk 

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counterparties failed
to perform as contracted. The financial assets that are subject to credit risk amount to Rs 4.78 billion (2006:
Rs 3.67 billion).

The company believes that it is not exposed to any major credit risk as it operates in an essential products
industry and has as its customers only a few sound organisations.

(ii) Foreign exchange risk 

Foreign currency risk arises mainly when payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. Amounts
exposed to such risk included in creditors are Rs 2.82 billion (2006: Rs 3.71 billion).

(iii) Liquidity Risk

The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash balances and the availability of financing
through banking arrangements.

(iv) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities 

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their
fair values.
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22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

3344.. CCAASSHH FFLLOOWW FFRROOMM OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS

Profit before taxation 550044,,226655 2,063,383 

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items

Depreciation / Amortisation 113322,,772233 110,122 

Share of income of associate ((66,,994499)) (19,568)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment ((11,,444422)) (954)

Mark-up expense 7766,,663388 35,802

Provision for defined benefit retirement plans 3311,,111177 20,632

223322,,008877 146,034

Working capital changes - note 34.1 ((770022,,883377)) 1,066,381

Cash generated from operations 3333,,551155 3,275,798

3344..11 WWoorrkkiinngg ccaappiittaall cchhaannggeess

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets

Stores, spares and chemicals 5533,,442266 (72,843)

Stock-in-trade ((11,,226644,,115599)) (1,802,673)

Trade debts ((11,,110044,,669911)) 249,874 

Loans and advances 33,,441133 (8,520)

Accrued interest / mark-up ((66,,445555)) 12,791 

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 66,,993344 (6,157)

Other receivables ((1122,,335599)) 9,029 

Tax refunds due from Government - Sales tax ((664422,,663355)) (428,699)

Investments ((119999,,557700)) (2,199)

((33,,116666,,009966)) (2,049,397)

Increase in trade and other payables 22,,446633,,225599 3,115,778 

((770022,,883377)) 1,066,381 
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22000077 22000066
((RRuuppeeeess iinn tthhoouussaanndd))

3355.. CCAASSHH AANNDD CCAASSHH EEQQUUIIVVAALLEENNTTSS

Cash and bank balances 11,,669988,,227777 2,363,107 

Short term borrowings - running finance under 

mark-up arrangements -- (29,080)

11,,669988,,227777 2,334,027 

3366.. PPRROOPPOOSSEEDD DDIIVVIIDDEENNDD

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on August 27, 2007 have proposed a cash dividend of Rs  3.33 per

share accumulating to a total of Rs 100 million, that has not been accounted for in these financial statements.

3377.. DDAATTEE OOFF AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN

These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 27, 2007 by the Board of Directors of the Company.
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SShhaarreehhoollddiinngg
NNuummbbeerr ooff SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss FFrroomm TToo NNuummbbeerr ooff SShhaarreess HHeelldd

893 1 - 100 29,430
731 101 - 500 207,388
328 501 - 1000 253,572
512 1001 - 5000 1,156,430
77 5001 - 10000 563,066
23 10001 - 15000 272,503
19 15001 - 20000 327,494
12 20001 - 25000 275,150
5 25001 - 30000 144,998
3 30001 - 35000 97,999
2 35001 - 40000 77,040
4 40001 - 45000 165,360
2 45001 - 50000 96,500
3 50001 - 55000 156,700
4 55001 - 60000 234,300
4 60001 - 65000 243,542
1 65001 - 70000 66,897
2 70001 - 75000 149,900
- 75001 - 80000 -
1 80001 - 85000 83,622
- 85001 - 90000 -
1 90001 - 95000 90,500
- 95001 - 100000 -
1 100001 - 105000 104,761
- 105001 - 110000 -
1 110001 - 115000 110,600
- 115001 - 125000 -
2 125001 - 130000 255,899
- 130001 - 215000 -
1 215001 - 220000 216,930
- 220001 - 245000 -
1 245001 - 250000 247,800
- 250001 - 295000 -
1 295001 - 300000 300,000
- 300001 - 490000 -
1 490001 - 495000 493,394
- 495001 - 1365000 -
1 1365001 - 1370000 1,368,528
- 1370001 - 1405000 -
1 1405001 - 1410000 1,409,697
- 1410001 - 2795000 -
1 2795001 - 2800000 2,800,000
- 2800001 - 3500000 -
1 3500001 - 3650000 3,600,000
- 3650001 - 5300000 -
1 5300001 - 5450000 5,400,000
- 5450001 - 8000001 -
1 7495001 - 7500000 9,000,000

Total 22,,664411 3300,,000000,,000000

Pattern of Shareholding
as at June 30, 2007
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SShhaarreehhoollddeerr''ss CCaatteeggoorryy NNoo ooff NNoo ooff PPeerrcceennttaaggee
SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss SShhaarreess IIssssuueedd CCaappiittaall

Associated Companies 5 18,009,580 60.03

NIT and ICP 3 2,791,761 9.31

Public Sector Companies and Corporations 3 793,514 2.65

Bank, DFI's, Modarba, Insurance, M.Fund 29 839,770 2.79

Joint Stock Companies and Body Corporates 58 3,115,608 10.39

Individuals 2,527 4,248,643 14.16

Others 16 201,124 0.67

TToottaall 22,,664411 3300,,000000,,000000 110000..0000

AAssssoocciiaatteedd ccoommppaanniieess,, uunnddeerrttaakkiinngg

aanndd rreellaatteedd ppaarrttiieess

Shell Petroleum Co. Limited, London 1 9,000,000 30.00

Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 1 5,400,000 18.00

Chevron Texaco Global Energy Inc. 1 3,600,000 12.00

Central Insurance Company Limited 1 9,430 0.03

Dawood Corporation (Private) Limited 1 150 0.00

NNIITT // IICCPP

National Bank of Pakistan - Trustee Dept. 1 2,778,225 9.26

Investment Corporation of Pakistan 1 2,537 0.01

National Investment Trust 1 10,999 0.04

DDiirreeccttoorrss,, CChhiieeff EExxeeccuuttiivvee aanndd tthheeiirr ssppoouusseess

aanndd mmiinnoorr cchhiillddrreenn

Mr. Hussain Dawood 1 15,349 0.05

Mr. Ardeshir Cowasjee 1 217,429 0.72

Mrs. Nancy Ardeshir Cowasjee 1 31,999 0.11

Public Sector Companies and Corporations 3 793,514 2.65

Bank, DFI's, NBFIs, Insurance Companies,

Modarabas and Mutual Funds 29 839,770 2.79

-

Joint Stock Companies and Body Corporates 58 3,115,608 10.39

-

Individuals - other than Directors & their spouses 2,524 3,983,866 13.28

Others 16 201,124 0.67

TToottaall 22,,664411 3300,,000000,,000000 110000..0000

Pattern of Shareholding
as at June 30, 2007
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I/ We

of being a Member(s)

of Pakistan Refinery Ltd. holding

ordinary shares hereby appoint

of or failing him / her

of

as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Forty-seventh

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on September 25, 2007 and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand / seal this day of 2007

Signed by the

In the presence of 1.

2.

Shareholder No.

IIMMPPOORRTTAANNTT
Instruments of Proxy will not be considered as valid unless they are deposited or received at the
Company«s Registered Office at Korangi Creek Road, Karachi, or share registrar«s office not later
than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

Form of Proxy 
47th Annunal General Meeting 2007

Signature on Revenue Stamp
of appropriate value

This signature should agree
with the specimen registered

with the Company.



The Secretary
Pakistan Refinery Limited

P.O. Box 4612, Korangi Creek Road, Karachi-74000, Pakistan.
Tel Off: (92-21) 5091771-79, 5091811-16

Fax: (92-21) 5060145, 5091780, Email: info@prl.com.pk
http://www.prl.com.pk
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